
Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes 
 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - Y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Mercher, 29 Chwefror 2012  

 

Amser: 
09:30 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Siân Phipps 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8582 
enterprise.committee@wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

Cyfarfod preifat cyn y prif gyfarfod (09.10 - 09.30) 

1. Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon   

2. Sesiwn i graffu ar waith y Gweinidog - y Gweinidog Llywodraeth 
Leol a Chymunedau (09.30 - 10.30) (Tudalennau 1 - 32)  
Papur 1 
Carl Sargeant AC – Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau 
Frances Duffy – Cyfarwyddwr Trafnidiaeth 
Tim James – Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr, Rhwydweithiau a Chynllunio   

3. Ymchwiliad i gysylltedd rhyngwladol drwy borthladdoedd a 
meysydd awyr Cymru - Sesiwn dystiolaeth (10.30 - 11.45) (Tudalennau 
33 - 54)  
Papur 2 
Papur 3 
Yr Athro Stuart Cole, Canolfan Ymchwil Trafnidiaeth Cymru, Ysgol Fusnes Prifysgol 
Morgannwg 
Martin Evans, Ysgol Fusnes Prifysgol Morgannwg 
  

4. Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod   

5. Trafod y Flaenraglen Waith - Ystyried ymchwiliad ar gyfer y 

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



dyfodol (11.45 - 12.15) (Tudalennau 55 - 59) 

6. Papurau i'w nodi  (Tudalennau 60 - 64)  
Papur 4 – Nodyn am gyfarfod grŵp gorchwyl a gorffen yr UE ar Gaffael ar 19 Ionawr 
  



Tudalen 1 o 5 

PAPUR I’R PWYLLGOR MENTER A BUSNES  
29 CHWEFROR 2012 

 
Y Cynllun Trafnidiaeth Cenedlaethol 

 
1. Diolch am y cyfle i’ch diweddaru ar y Cynllun Trafnidiaeth Cenedlaethol 

(CTC). Ers fy ngwahodd i’r sesiwn hon, mae’r Pwyllgor wedi anfon llythyr 
manwl ataf yn codi cwestiynau penodol am bob rhan o’r portffolio 
trafnidiaeth. Rwyf wedi ateb y cwestiynau ar wahân yn Atodiad A ac wedi 
rhoi’r diweddaraf am gynnydd yr CTC hyd yma yn Atodiad B.  

 
2. Pan rois dystiolaeth i’r Pwyllgor yng Ngorffennaf 2011 dywedais fod fy 

swyddogion wrthi’n blaenoriaethu CTC 2010. Roedd CTC 2010 yn seiliedig 
ar ragdybiaethau cyllidebol 2009 ac yn cynnwys rhestr o ymyriadau 
trafnidiaeth i’w cyflawni dros y pum mlynedd o 2010/11 i 2014/2015.  

 
3. Cyhoeddais ganlyniad proses flaenoriaethu’r CTC ar 7 Rhagfyr 2011. O 

ganlyniad i’r blaenoriaethu, rydym yn bwrw ymlaen â buddsoddiadau a 
wnaiff i system drafnidiaeth Cymru weithio’n well fel y gall helpu i drechu 
tlodi, cynyddu lles a hybu twf economaidd. 

 
4. Wrth flaenoriaethu, canolbwyntiwyd ar aildrefnu amserlen ymyriadau 

presennol yr CTC yn hytrach nag ar ei newid yn sylweddol. Mae’r 
asesiadau, yr arfarniadau a’r ymgynghoriad a gynhaliwyd yn 2009-10 yn dal 
yn berthnasol. Aseswyd ymyriadau CTC 2010 gan ddefnyddio datganiadau 
a godwyd o’m hamcanion strategol ac o weledigaeth y Llywodraeth ar gyfer 
trafnidiaeth: 

 
o  Mynd i’r afael â’r problemau symudedd a wynebir gan bobl dlawd 

mewn cymunedau amddifad, drwy wella’r mynediad at gyflogaeth, 
gwasanaethau a chyfleusterau. 

o  Sicrhau bod rhwydwaith trafnidiaeth Cymru yn gweithio’n fwy effeithlon 
ac effeithiol. 

o  Mynd i’r afael â thagfeydd trefol i ddatgloi twf cynaliadwy. 

o  Gwella’r mynediad i safleoedd ac aneddiadau allweddol, yn enwedig 
mewn ardaloedd gwledig, gyda phwyslais ar gynyddu a gwella 
ansawdd y dewisiadau teithio iach a mwy cynaliadwy. 

o  Gwella capasiti’r prif goridorau Traws-Ewropeaidd strategol o ddwyrain 
i orllewin Cymru.  

5. Ar ôl ei flaenoriaethu, adolygwyd yr CTC i sicrhau cysondeb ag amcanion y 
Llywodraeth, gan gynnwys Ardaloedd Menter, gwasanaethau iechyd, 
ymrwymiadau datblygu cynaliadwy ac adfywio. Fe’i hadolygwyd hefyd gan 
banel arbenigol â chynrychiolwyr o wahanol sectorau. 

 
6. Rwy’n cyfeirio f’adnoddau at ymyriadau a wnaiff y mwyaf o wahaniaeth i 

fywydau pobl. Fy nod cyffredinol yw gwella symudedd a chysylltedd, er 

Eitem 2

Tudalen 1



Tudalen 2 o 5 

mwyn i bobl gael mynediad at y pethau sydd eu hangen arnynt, megis 
swyddi, gofal iechyd, addysg, gofal plant, cyfeillion a pherthnasau.  

 
7. Rwyf wedi blaenoriaethu buddsoddiadau a wnaiff drafnidiaeth gyhoeddus yn 

fwy hygyrch a deniadol i’w defnyddio. Bydd y buddsoddiadau’n rhoi sylw i’r 
ffordd y darperir gwybodaeth am deithio ac i ffyrdd o gael gafael ar 
docynnau, yn enwedig drwy ddulliau tocynnu newydd. Mae Cerdyn Hawliau 
Teithio Cymru wedi’i flaenoriaethu a bydd cynlluniau peilot newydd yn cael 
eu lansio i gysylltu gwasanaethau bws a rheilffordd ym Mangor a 
Chasnewydd. 

 
8. Byddaf yn parhau i wella gwasanaethau bws. Rwyf wedi blaenoriaethu ein 

cymorth i weithredwyr gwasanaethau bws fel bod ein system drafnidiaeth 
gyhoeddus yn diwallu anghenion defnyddwyr y presennol a’r dyfodol yn well. 
Mae gan wasanaethau bws y potensial i fod yn ffordd hyblyg o gysylltu 
cymunedau â safleoedd megis gorsafoedd trenau, gweithleoedd, 
canolfannau gofal iechyd a sefydliadau addysg.  

 
9. Mae llawer o bobl yn dibynnu ar wasanaethau bws i’w cysylltu â gwahanol 

safleoedd, a’r sialens fydd dod o hyd i well ffyrdd o gydweithio â darparwyr 
gwasanaethau i oresgyn y rhwystrau i’w defnyddio: cost, y tocynnu, yr 
amserlennu, amlder a’r llwybrau teithio. Bydd hyn yn golygu cydweithio’n 
agos ag awdurdodau lleol, trafnidiaeth gymunedol a’r diwydiant bysiau i 
wneud gwell defnydd o bartneriaethau ansawdd ac i estyn, lle y bo’n briodol, 
wasanaethau megis Bwcabus a TrawsCymru.  

 
10. Mae Llywodraeth San Steffan wedi lleihau yn fawr yr adnoddau sydd ar gael 

i Lywodraeth Cymru, ac mae hynny wedi rhoi pwysau aruthrol ar fy 
nghyllideb drafnidiaeth. Rwy’n benderfynol o ddarparu’r lefel orau bosibl o 
wasanaethau bws yng Nghymru, ond mae hynny’n golygu gweithredu mewn 
ffordd wahanol.  

 
11. Serch hynny, rwy’n dal i fuddsoddi £69 miliwn bob blwyddyn yn y diwydiant 

bysiau drwy’r cynllun teithio rhatach tra llwyddiannus ar gyfer yr henoed a 
phobl anabl. Byddaf yn dwyn cynlluniau ymlaen eleni i wneud 
gwasanaethau bws hyd yn oed yn fwy ymatebol i gymunedau lleol, drwy roi 
mwy o anogaeth i gynlluniau megis Partneriaethau Ansawdd Bysiau. 

 
12. Mae gweithredwyr yng Nghymru wedi cael cyfraddau GGGB haelach am 

ddiesel safonol nag yn Lloegr. Er gwaethaf y newid interim yn yr GGGB, 
mae Cymru’n dal i roi mwy o gymorth na Lloegr – 35.28c y litr yng Nghymru 
o’i gymharu â 34.57c y litr yn Lloegr. Rwyf hefyd wedi defnyddio’r GGGB i 
annog mwy o gynaliadwyedd amgylcheddol drwy ddarparu cyfradd o 58.19c 
y litr ar gyfer cerbydau sy’n defnyddio biodanwyddau – cyfradd hael iawn 
nad yw ar gael yn Lloegr. 

 
13. Rwyf wedi gofyn am gyfarfodydd cyn gynted â phosibl â’r diwydiant bysiau 

ac awdurdodau lleol i drafod sefydlu system newydd i ariannu 
gwasanaethau. Bydd fy nhrafodaethau â phartneriaid allweddol yn 
canolbwyntio ar ffyrdd o barhau i gynorthwyo’r gwasanaethau a 

Tudalen 2



Tudalen 3 o 5 

werthfawrogir gan bobl Cymru, er ei bod yn amlwg y bydd yn rhaid i bethau 
newid am fod llawer llai o arian i’w ddosbarthu. Rwy’n sylweddoli bod y 
newid a gynigiaf i’r strwythur ariannu yn fawr, a byddaf yn gofalu bod y 
newidiadau’n cael eu cyflwyno fesul cam i sicrhau cyn lleied o amharu â 
phosibl ar wasanaethau. 

 
14. Rwyf am weld system reilffyrdd fodern a mwy effeithiol yng Nghymru. Rwyf 

am wneud gwasanaethau rheilffordd yn fwy hygyrch, fel bod gan fwy o’n 
cymunedau y dewis i ddefnyddio system reilffyrdd uchel ei hansawdd sydd 
hefyd yn fforddiadwy. Bydd hyn yn golygu cynllunio ar gyfer twf yn y defnydd 
o’r rheilffyrdd yr un pryd â cheisio’u gwneud yn fwy effeithiol.  

 
15. Llywodraeth Cymru a arweiniodd y gwaith o ddatblygu’r achos busnes 

amlinellol ar gyfer trydanu Prif Reilffordd y Great Western mor bell ag 
Abertawe, ynghyd â’r achos busnes amlinellol ar gyfer trydanu holl 
rwydwaith Rheilffyrdd y Cymoedd. Mae’r achosion busnes hyn yn eiddo i’r 
Adran Drafnidiaeth ac yn rhan o’i phroses benderfynu ar gyfer y cyfnod 
nesaf o fuddsoddi mewn rheilffyrdd (2014-2019, sef Cyfnod Rheoli 5). 

 
16. Cefais gyfarfod â’r Ysgrifennydd Gwladol dros Drafnidiaeth ym mis Ionawr. 

Roedd hi’n derbyn ein bod wedi darparu achos cryf a chadarn dros 
drydanu’r rheilffordd gyfan yn Ne Cymru. Mae fy nhrafodaethau’n parhau, ac 
felly nid wyf mewn sefyllfa i rannu’r achosion. Fodd bynnag, rwy’n disgwyl 
penderfyniad gan yr Ysgrifennydd Gwladol dros Drafnidiaeth ym mis 
Gorffennaf, a byddaf yn gallu dweud mwy am yr achosion wedi hynny. 

 
17. Trydanu rhwydwaith Rheilffyrdd y Cymoedd fydd y cam cyntaf tuag at 

ddarparu system drafnidiaeth ‘fetro’ wirioneddol integredig yn ne Cymru. Y 
tu hwnt i hynny, bydd y dull strategol o gynllunio yn canolbwyntio ar 
ddatblygu systemau trafnidiaeth integredig yn rhanbarthol. 

 
18. Mae fy swyddogion yn trafod â TraCC yr arfarniadau WelTAG ar gynigion i 

ailagor gorsafoedd yng Ngharno a Bow Street, a gomisiynwyd gan TraCC. 
Roedd yr arfarniadau achos busnes yn yr astudiaeth yn fwy cadarnhaol 
ynghylch Bow Street na Charno, sydd â chymhareb cost a budd wael. Am 
nad oedd ailagor y gorsafoedd hyn yn rhan o’r CTC gwreiddiol, nis 
cynhwyswyd yn y rhaglen gyflawni a gyhoeddais ym mis Rhagfyr ar ôl 
blaenoriaethu’r CTC.  

 
19. Nid wyf felly mewn sefyllfa i fwrw ymlaen â’r cynlluniau hyn o dan yr amlen 

gyllidebol gyfredol. Fodd bynnag, fel gydag unrhyw gynllun, os bydd mwy o 
arian ar gael yn y dyfodol bydd angen ystyried y cynigion yn erbyn 
blaenoriaethau cenedlaethol a rhanbarthol eraill ynghyd ag ystyried yr achos 
busnes, fforddiadwyedd, a materion gweithredol megis cyfatebiaeth ag 
amserlenni prif reilffordd y Cambrian ar y pryd ac yn y dyfodol. 

 
20. Mae TraCC, a’r consortia trafnidiaeth rhanbarthol eraill, yn cael grant 

blynyddol gan Lywodraeth Cymru i gyflawni eu rhaglenni Cynllun 
Trafnidiaeth Rhanbarthol, ond am nawr, mae eu cyllidebau’n canolbwyntio 
ar flaenoriaethau eraill. 

Tudalen 3



Tudalen 4 o 5 

 
21. Rydym ni fel Llywodraeth yn cael dylanwad cynyddol ar ddyfodol y 

rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru, a’n nod yw ymwneud yn fwy uniongyrchol â’r 
gwaith o gynllunio a chyflenwi rhwydwaith rheilffyrdd modern. Byddwn yn 
defnyddio’r holl bwerau sydd gennym i gynyddu ein dylanwad dros y 
rhwydwaith rheilffyrdd a’r gwasanaethau yng Nghymru. 

 
22. Mae buddsoddi mewn cerdded a beicio yn bwysig i roi dewisiadau ymarferol 

i bobl sy’n teithio yn ôl ac ymlaen i’r gwaith neu i sefydliad addysg, yn 
enwedig yn ein hardaloedd trefol. Rwyf wedi symleiddio’r ethos sydd wrth 
wraidd ein buddsoddiadau a byddaf yn canolbwyntio ar gynnig cyfleoedd 
diogel a deniadol i bobl feicio, fel bod ganddynt fwy o ddewisiadau teithio. 

 
23. Rwy’n bwrw ymlaen â deddfwriaeth i wneud cerdded a beicio yn 

ddewisiadau mwy ymarferol ar gyfer cymudo a theithio mewn trefi. Mae hyn 
yn rhan o’m dull ehangach o fynd i’r afael â thlodi a thagfeydd trefol drwy 
greu gwir ddewisiadau amgen i’r car ar gyfer siwrneiau byr. 

 
24. Trwy flaenoriaethu’r CTC, rwy’n dal i ganolbwyntio ar gael y gorau o’n 

rhwydwaith ffyrdd presennol drwy ei gynnal a’i uwchraddio. Yn y tymor byr i 
ganolig, byddaf yn buddsoddi mewn ymyriadau sy’n gwneud i’n rhwydwaith 
ffyrdd weithio’n fwy effeithlon, fel y gallaf roi sylw i’r problemau symudedd a 
hygyrchedd a wynebir gan bobl sy’n byw mewn tlodi.  

 
25. Byddaf hefyd yn blaenoriaethu buddsoddiadau lle y gallaf gyfrannu at dwf 

economaidd, drwy fynd i’r afael â thagfeydd trefol, drwy wella’r mynediad i 
safleoedd ac aneddiadau allweddol (yn enwedig mewn ardaloedd gwledig), 
a thrwy wella capasiti a dibynadwyedd ein llwybrau dwyrain-gorllewin 
allweddol.  

 
26. Os ydwyf i wneud y rhwydwaith ffyrdd yn fwy effeithiol, bydd angen rhoi sylw 

i’r problemau a wynebir bob dydd. Bydd hyn yn golygu datrys problemau 
sylfaenol mewn ffyrdd mwy ystwyth – mae ein gwaith diweddar wedi profi 
bod gweithredu arloesol yn gallu arwain yn llawer cynt at atebion synnwyr 
cyffredin, megis y ffordd ymadael tua’r dwyrain wrth Gyffordd 32, Coryton o’r 
M4, i fynd tua’r gogledd ar yr A470. 

 
27. Ochr yn ochr â’m cynlluniau tymor hwy, rwyf wedi blaenoriaethu cyllid ar 

gyfer cynlluniau llai sy’n bwysig yn lleol ac a wnaiff wahaniaeth gwirioneddol 
i fywydau’r bobl sy’n byw ac yn gweithio yn yr ardaloedd hynny. Mae hyn yn 
dangos yn glir fod yr CTC, a thrafnidiaeth yn ehangach, yn canolbwyntio ar 
ddatrys y problemau trafnidiaeth a wynebir bob dydd.  

 
28. Byddaf yn buddsoddi yn y rhwydwaith ffyrdd i hybu twf economaidd, trechu 

tlodi a chynyddu lles. Byddaf yn buddsoddi i wella diogelwch gyrwyr, 
teithwyr, cerddwyr a beicwyr a byddaf yn buddsoddi i wella’r cyfleusterau ar 
gyfer cerdded a beicio.  

 

Tudalen 4



Tudalen 5 o 5 

29. Nid datganiad o egwyddorion yn unig yw hwn. Mae’r Cynllun Trafnidiaeth 
Cenedlaethol a flaenoriaethwyd yn nodi pa raglenni sydd i’w cyflawni a 
phryd, fel bod y cyhoedd yn gallu sicrhau fy mod yn cadw at fy ngair.  

 
Carl Sargeant 
Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau  Chwefror 2012 

Tudalen 5



Annex A 

Page 1 of 10 

Answers to questions posed in Committee letter dated 30 January 2012 
 

National Transport Plan Priorities  

Progress made in 
delivering the National 
Transport Plan 

· See Annex B 

How and why the 
projects delayed until 
after 2015, beyond the 
scope of the current 
National Transport 
Plan, were identified. 

· The Government committed to prioritising the 
objectives in the NTP to bring forward interventions 
that make the greatest contribution to the strategic 
objectives of the Local Government and Communities 
portfolio and the Welsh Government. 

 

· Each intervention in the National Transport Plan was 
assessed against the statements listed below to 
identify the interventions that contribute to addressing 
poverty, increasing well-being and supporting 
economic growth. 

 

· This ensured that existing transport funding is used 
effectively and that future investment decisions are 
made against the overarching strategic priorities, at a 
time of growing public finance constraint. 

 

· The intention is for interventions not prioritised until 
2015 to be scheduled for delivery after that period, 
when funding becomes available. 

 

· Consideration was also given to the deliverability of 
schemes, and how close to implementation schemes 
were. 

 

How the reprioritised 
National Transport 
Plan addresses the 
issue of poverty, 
increases well-being 
and economic growth 
 

· Each intervention in the National Transport Plan was 
assessed against the following statements to identify 
the interventions that contribute to addressing poverty, 
increasing well-being and supporting economic 
growth: 
o Address the mobility issues faced by people living 

in poverty in deprived communities, by improving 
access to employment, services and facilities. 

o Ensure the transport network in Wales operates 
more efficiently and effectively. 

o Tackle urban congestion to unlock sustainable 
growth. 

o Improve access to key sites and settlements, 
particularly in rural areas, with emphasis on 
improving the quality and provision of healthy and 
more sustainable travel choices.   

o Improve the capacity and reliability of the main 
east-west strategic Trans European corridors in 
Wales. 

Tudalen 6



Annex A 

Page 2 of 10 

How the changes 
made to the plan have 
improved the capacity 
of the original plan to 
address these issues 
 

· The 2010 NTP was designed to delivery the 
Government’s objectives and the Wales Transport 
Strategy, using 2009/2010 budget assumptions. 

 

· The prioritisation of the NTP took into account this 
Government’s priorities and future budget availability, 
reflecting the change in economic climate. 

 

· The prioritised NTP is therefore realistic in terms of 
budgets available to me, but also specific in terms of a 
delivery timetable.  

 

· The prioritised NTP contains a rescheduled delivery 
list of interventions that contribute to the Government’s 
programme. 

 

Enterprise Zones  

How the 
reprioritisation of the 
National Transport 
Plan supports the 
development of 
enterprise zones 

· We will be closely working with local authority officials 
and colleagues within the Welsh Government to 
ensure that the transport requirements of the 
Enterprise Zones are appropriately considered. 

· Three of the five enterprise zones in Wales are on the 
Valley Lines Network; the other two are along the 
North Wales Coast Main Line. For these areas, rail 
connections will be of huge importance for both 
passengers and freight. 

· The two new potential enterprise zones in 
Trawsfynydd in Gwynedd and Haven Water in 
Pembrokeshire announced on 31 January are both on 
the trunk road network. 

 

Which specific 
projects are being 
taken forward to 
support enterprise 
zones. 
 

· Prioritisation of the NTP brought forward interventions 
that enable the Welsh Government to make the 
transport network more effective and support 
economic growth. 

 

· The impact of projects on enterprise zones was 
included in the assessment of the NTP. 
 

· The following specific projects planned for 2012 – 
2015 contribute to supporting enterprise zones: 

 
St. Athan 
Supported by  

· The Outline Business Case for electrification of the 
Valley Lines, which will contribute to the 
modernisation of rail in Wales (NTP 26). 

Tudalen 7



Annex A 

Page 3 of 10 

· A4226 ‘Five Mile Lane’ safety improvements – 
prioritised (NTP 87) 

o Planned for 2012-13. 
o Further review of the options in light of 

railway modernisation/electrification of the 
Valley Lines. 

 

· Metro concept – delivery supported through Valley 
Lines electrification 

 
Cardiff Central Business District 
Supported by  

· The Outline Business Case for electrification of the 
Valley Lines, which will contribute to the 
modernisation of rail in Wales (NTP 26). 

 

· Metro concept – delivery supported through Valley 
Lines electrification. 

 
Ebbw Vale 
Supported by  

· The Outline Business Case for electrification of the 
Valley Lines, which will contribute to the 
modernisation of rail in Wales (NTP 26). 

 

· Ebbw Vale Town – new station feasibility study – 
prioritised (NTP 90) 

o Linked to rail modernisation and 
electrification of the Valley Lines.  

 

· Metro concept – delivery supported through Valley 
Lines electrification 

 
Deeside 
Supported by  

· North-south fast train service – prioritised (NTP 56). 
o Service provision until May 2012 has been 

confirmed. 
o Future options currently being considered. 

 

· Enhancing the capacity of the section of rail 
between Shewsbury and Chester, via Wrexham – 
prioritised (NTP 57) 

 

· Address the transport issues in Wrexham, Chester 
Deeside triangle – prioritised (NTP 95). 

o Report on the options due later this year. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 8



Annex A 

Page 4 of 10 

Anglesey 
Supported by  

· Increasing the capacity of the A55 across the Menai 
– prioritised (NTP 93). 

 

· Address the issues on the A55 at Junctions 15 and 
16 – prioritised (NTP 94). 

o Consultants appointed to progress details. 
 

· Additional funding identified for  
o congestion reducing measures on Britannia 

Bridge. 
 
Haven Waterway, Pembrokeshire – should it be confirmed 
Supported by  

· A477 from St Clears to Red Roses – prioritised 
(NTP 84). 

o Due to start this month (Feb 2012) 
 

· A40 from Llanddewi Velfry to Penblewin – 
prioritised (NTP 85). 

 
Snowdonia, Trawsfynydd – should it be confirmed 
Supported by  

· A470 at Gelligemlyn – prioritised (NTP 60). 
o work to begin in March this year (2012). 

 

· A470 Maes yr Helmau to Cross Foxes – prioritised 
(NTP 61). 

o work to begin in March this year (2012). 
 

· A487 from Caernarfon to Bontnewydd – prioritised 
(NTP 69). 

 
Powys  
Supported by  

· A483 in Newtown – prioritised (NTP 70). 
o Appointing contractors in 2012/13. 

 

· My officials are looking at the next priorities for 
taking forward improvements to the TrawsCymru 
long distance bus network.  As part of this work, 
they will look to see how services can be improved 
to provide better access to the Enterprise Zones. 

 

Bus Services 

How the Welsh 
Government will 
continue to improve 
bus services, as 

· I have protected funding for Bus Services Operators’ 
Grant (BSOG) at £17m and Local Transport Services 
Grant (LTSG) at £8m for next year. 

 

Tudalen 9



Annex A 

Page 5 of 10 

indicated in your 
statement, given the 
scale of the reductions 
in BSOG and LTSG 

· This means that for the next year the basic rate of 
BSOG in Wales will be 35.28 pence per litre and this 
will still be higher than the 34.57 pence per litre 
available in England.  

 

· I have also used BSOG to encourage more 
environmental sustainability by providing a rate of 
58.19p per litre for vehicles using bio-fuels – this is not 
matched elsewhere across the UK. 

 

· I have asked for meetings to be arranged as a matter 
of urgency with the bus industry and local authorities 
on putting in place a new system for financing 
services.  I appreciate that I am proposing a major 
change in the financing structure and will look carefully 
at how the changes are phased in to minimise the 
disruption in services. 

 

· Local Authorities already have powers to introduce 
statutory Bus Quality Partnership Schemes that can 
make bus services more responsive to local needs. 
We want to see more of these schemes delivered 
across Wales. This will build on the current plans for 
Quality Bus Partnership Schemes between 
Aberystwyth and Carmarthen and Newtown and 
Merthyr Tydfil. 

 

· I am fully committed to supporting bus services over 
and above the £69m a year we give to the industry 
from concessionary fares. 

 

What assessment of 
the impact of the 
reduction in BSOG 
and LTSG was 
undertaken in advance 
of the decision what 
the findings of that 
assessment were; 
what steps are being 
taken to mitigate that 
impact on service 

· An Equality Impact Assessment was completed to help 
inform the decision about the funding for BSOG and 
LTSG next year. 

 

· The assessment illustrated that there would be some 
adverse impact on some protected groups.  However, 
elderly and disabled people would be insulated from 
the effects of any rise in fares through the availability 
of the all-Wales concessionary fares scheme. 

 

· I have mitigated these effects by maintaining the 
funding and entitlements enjoyed by pass holders 
under the concessionary fares scheme and by looking 
to put in place a new funding scheme that will focus on 
a partnership approach to deliver bus services that 
people want.  

 

Why , given the scale 
of the reduction, were 

· I met bus operators in November 2011 and was clear 
that any decisions on funding for BSOG and LTSG in 

Tudalen 10



Annex A 

Page 6 of 10 

bus operators not 
given greater notice of 
the reduction 
 

2012-13 would have to wait until the Welsh 
Government’s Budget had been agreed and I had 
prioritised the National Transport Plan.  At this time I 
indicated that there would be less money available. 

 

· Following my announcement on my priorities for the 
National Transport Plan, and the agreed Budget, I had 
to consider my spending plans for the totality of 
transport programmes.  They needed to strike a 
balance between the funding available and delivering 
best value for money.  

 

· This was a difficult exercise given the variety of 
competing pressures and I needed to be satisfied that 
my plans would be consistent with our key strategic 
outcomes.  

 

· I announced my spending plans in January, as early 
as possible after the Christmas Recess following 
decisions on the budget and the National Transport 
Plan. 

 

Community Transport and Bwcabus 

Provide an update on 
intervention 18 and tell 
us how the Welsh 
Government intends 
to work with the 
Community Transport 
sector following the 
withdrawal of funding 
for the Community 
Transport 
Concessionary Fares 
Initiative; and  
 

· We will continue to work with the Community 
Transport Association Wales to look at how our 
funding from BSOG and LTSG can be better used to 
deliver the local services that people in Wales want.  

 

· The evaluation of the 6 year pilot scheme evidenced 
significant issues with continuing to fund the entirety of 
the scheme on the present basis. 

 

· I am aware that each of these schemes is a distinct 
individual project and I believe it important that I now 
examine the projects independently to look at the 
benefits each scheme provides and whether there are 
alternative funding sources available. 

 

· Different avenues of funding are available for some of 
the schemes, particularly those that are suited to being 
registered as demand responsive services under 
Section 22 permits, which means they would be 
eligible for funding from the All-Wales Concessionary 
Fare Scheme.  

 

· I have decided that the financing of the projects will not 
end in March but continue whilst this further evaluation 
takes place. 

 

· 10% of the Local Transport Services Grant allocations 

Tudalen 11



Annex A 

Page 7 of 10 

to Local Authorities is ringed fenced to support the 
sector. 

 

Outline the Welsh 
Government’s strategy 
for “innovative 
transport services” 
including details of 
how Community 
Transport and 
Bwcabus will be 
developed and 
integrated with 
conventional bus and 
rail services. 

· We are supporting 4 pilots in deep rural locations that 
are looking at ways to provide local services to support 
the needs of remote rural communities.  

 

· I have provided an additional £400,000 over the next 
three years that will see the expansion of the award 
winning demand responsive Bwcabus service to more 
remote rural communities in Carmarthenshire and 
Ceredigionshire. 

 

· I am keen to encourage more community transport 
operators to provide demand responsive and flexible 
bus services that will make use of the greater flexibility 
I have provided under section 22 of the Transport Act. 

 

· Different avenues of funding are available for some 
Community Transport schemes, particularly those that 
are suited to being registered as demand responsive 
services under Section 22 permits, which means they 
would be eligible for funding from the All-Wales 
Concessionary Fare Scheme.  There are some good 
examples of this – Bwcabus and Grass Roots in 
Monmouthshire. 

 

M4 Congestion 

Provide an update on 
Welsh Government 
plans to relieve 
congestion on the M4 
identified in the 
reprioritised National 
Transport Plan 

· We have improved traffic flow and safety on the M4. We 
improved Junction 24 the Coldra; put in place a Variable 
Speed Limit System; and are deploying traffic officers to 
help reinforce these measures. 

· At Junction 32 Coryton there is now a dedicated 
eastbound off slip road to go northbound on the A470. 

· Phase 2 of developing a link between Junction 23a 
and the Southern Distributor Road, along the Llanwern 
steel works road will commence in the next month 
(March 2012). 

 

· M4 Corridor Enhancement Measures (M4CEM) 
programme is looking at how to improve the ability of 
the corridor to cope with current journey levels in an 
efficient way and enable more journeys to be made 
than are now.  A Public Consultation exercise will start 
later this Spring. 

 

Provide an update on 
discussions held with 

· The First Minister is in discussion with Number 10 and 
the Treasury but I am not in a position at present to 

Tudalen 12



Annex A 

Page 8 of 10 

the UK Government on 
improvements to the 
M4 following the 
Autumn Statement 
including an outline of 
the options being 
considered; and  
Indicate when you 
expect to announce 
the results of those 
discussions 

provide any further information.  

 

Alternative and Additional Sources of funding 

Which additional 
projects, other than 
those you identified in 
October 2011, will be 
funded from the 
Centrally Retained 
Capital Funding 
announced in 
November 
 

£11.7m CRC funding has been allocated to transport 
projects, supporting the delivery of the National Transport 
Plan: 

· The National Traffic Data Collection Network 
project has been allocated £5.28m which will see 
the installation of permanent traffic data collection 
equipment across the strategic roads of Wales to 
assist their management;  

· The M4 J32 Coryton project has received £2.1m to 
improve the current layout at the junction by 
providing a direct link road from the M4 westbound 
off slip road to the A470 northbound to improve 
traffic flow, safety and congestion;  

· £2.6m has been allocated to the Welsh National 
Winter Maintenance Resilience project which will 
entail improvements to adverse weather resilience 
throughout Wales and facilitates support to local 
authorities through the provision of appropriately 
located strategic salt storage facilities. 

 

How much of the 
consequential funding 
arising from the 
Chancellor’s Autumn 
Statement you 
anticipate being 
allocated to transport 
and over which period 

· This is a matter for the Finance Minister and the 
Cabinet. 

Whether you 
anticipate that the 
consequential funding 
will enable the delivery 
of the National 
Transport Plan to be 
accelerated 
 

· If the First Minister and the Cabinet were to decide to 
allocate any additional funding to transport then I 
would consider whether it would be appropriate to 
bring forward any NTP intervention.  

Tudalen 13



Annex A 

Page 9 of 10 

Rail 

How the reprioritised 
National Transport 
Plan will develop the 
Welsh rail network 
 

· The rail schemes under the National Transport Plan 
will deliver additional capacity to allow additional 
services on the Cardiff Valleys network, including the 
Vale of Glamorgan line, and unlock major network 
capacity bottlenecks at Gowerton, benefitting west 
Wales, and between Shrewsbury and Chester, via 
Wrexham, benefitting north Wales. 

 

· In addition, there will be a new station at Energlyn, and 
a number of existing stations will benefit from major 
upgrade under the Wales Station Improvement 
Programme (NSIP+), including accessibility 
improvements.  

 

The business case for 
electrification of the 
valley lines and the 
Great Western 
Mainland from 
Swansea to Cardiff, 
including details of the 
strength of the case 
itself and when you 
expect an 
announcement from 
DfT 

· The Welsh Government led on the development of the 
outline business case for the continuation of 
electrification of the Great Western Main Line to 
Swansea, as well as the outline business case for 
electrification of the whole of the Valley Lines network. 

· These business cases belong to the Department for 
Transport and are part of their decision making 
process for the next railway investment period (2014-
2019, known as Control Period 5). 

· I met the Secretary of State for Transport in January.  
She accepted that we have provided a strong and 
robust case for electrification of the whole railway in 
South Wales. 

 

· My discussions are ongoing, so I am not in a position 
to share the cases.  However, I expect a decision from 
the Secretary of State for Transport in July, and from 
that point, I can be clearer in setting out the cases. 

 

Whether EU funding, 
particularly the 
Connecting Europe 
Facility, is being 
considered for 
delivery of the 
electrification of the 
Great Western 
Mainline to Swansea 

· Investment in rail infrastructure is a non-devolved 
responsibility of the UK Government.  To date, 
European Structural Funding in Wales has been used 
to bring additionality to Welsh Government priorities 
within our own Budget responsibilities. 

 

High Speed Rail 

Why a response to the 
UK Government’s 
consultation on HS2 
was not considered 

· Welsh Government Ministers met the Chairmen (Sir 
Brian Biscoe and Sir David Rowlands) of High Speed 
2 Ltd to state the strategic importance of high speed 

Tudalen 14



Annex A 

Page 10 of 10 

necessary rail lines for Wales.  

· The drafting of the my evidence paper for the 
Enterprise and Business Committee last summer took 
place prior to the DfT high speed rail consultation 
meeting on 5 July 2011 when the UK Government's 
position was made clear that the high speed rail 
network would not be extended to Wales. 

· On this basis, it was determined that the Welsh 
Government would not reply to the additional 
questions in the UK Government's consultation 
exercise which were route specific, and the route that 
the UK Government was consulting on did not include 
Wales.  

· I am in no doubt that, the UK Government understands 
the Welsh Government position on High Speed Rail for 
Wales and I will continue to press the case to the UK 
Government that Wales is included in the UK High 
Speed Rail network. 

 

What the Welsh 
Government’s view is 
of the impact of High 
Speed 2 proposals on 
Wales and what steps 
are being taken to 
ensure any negative 
impact is mitigated. 

· The Welsh Government is of the strong view that the 
High Speed Rail project announced by the UK 
Government will have no benefits for Wales. 

 

· The Welsh Block will not receive a Barnett 
consequential following the High Speed Rail project – 
spending on rail infrastructure is non-devolved and 
there is no Block consequential. 

 

· I want the high speed trains to provide good onward 
connections to all parts of Wales.  These would be 
from the new Midlands interchange near Birmingham 
International Airport, where I want good connections 
to/from the north Wales coast main line, and good 
onward connections to Shrewsbury, mid Wales and 
beyond. I will continue to press the case for this 
strongly to the UK Government. 

 

 

Tudalen 15



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 1
 o

f 
1
7
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

a
d

e
 i

n
 d

e
li

v
e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
  

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
e

d
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s

 
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

1
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
ra

v
e

l 
c
e

n
tr

e
s
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

 –
 2

0
1

5
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 

£
1

9
m

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

v
e

s
te

d
 i
n

 C
a

rd
if
f,

 £
2
m

 i
n

 M
o

n
 &

 M
e

n
a

i,
 £

2
m

 i
n
 A

b
e

ry
s
tw

y
th

 a
n

d
 £

2
m

 
in

 H
a
v
e

rf
o

rd
w

e
s
t 

a
n

d
 C

a
rm

a
rt

h
e

n
. 

 P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 s

e
c
u

re
d

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
fo

r 
o
v
e

r 
th

re
e

 y
e

a
rs

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e

 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t.
 

2
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
o
f 

tr
a
v
e

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

 –
 2

0
1

5
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t  

P
T

U
C

 –
 T

h
e

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 w

ri
ti
n

g
 a

 r
e
p

o
rt

 o
n
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
T

h
is

 
re

p
o

rt
 w

ill
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
th

e
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

(2
0

1
0

-1
1

).
 T

h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

 t
h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
s
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 f

ro
m

 u
s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

to
rs

 o
n
 a

ll 
a

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 w
ill

 f
o

rm
 t

h
e

 b
a

s
is

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 W

e
ls

h
 M

in
is

te
rs

 o
n

 
h

o
w

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
T

h
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e
a

d
y
 t

o
 p

re
s
e

n
t 
to

 t
h

e
 

M
in

is
te

r 
in

 M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

2
.  

F
u
rt

h
e

r 
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 f
o

rw
a

rd
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
. 

3
 

D
ra

w
 o

n
 S

m
a

rt
e
r 

C
h
o

ic
e
s
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

: 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 m
o

re
 

h
e

a
lt
h

y
 a

n
d

 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
ra

v
e

l.
 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

 -
 2

0
1

5
 

P
ro

m
o
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 t

ra
v
e

l 
c
e

n
tr

e
s
, 

p
e

rs
o
n

a
lis

e
d
 t

ra
v
e

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
. 

 W
o
rk

p
la

c
e

 t
ra

v
e

l 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

y
 R

e
g
io

n
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 C

o
n

s
o

rt
ia

. 

4
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 
o
f 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

 -
 2

0
1

5
 

W
e
lT

A
G

 r
e
fr

e
s
h

 b
e

in
g
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 a
c
ro

s
s
 W

a
le

s
. 

M
o

d
e

l 
g
ro

u
p

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

o
n

 a
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l 
a
n

d
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
b
a

s
is

. 

6
 

In
tr

o
d
u

c
e

 W
e
ls

h
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
E

n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n

t 
C

a
rd

 
fo

r 
b
u

s
 a

n
d

 r
a
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

b
y
 2

0
1

4
).

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

 –
 2

0
1

5
 

(l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t)
 

P
ilo

ts
 a

re
 p

la
n
n

e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e

 i
n

 N
e

w
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 B

a
n

g
o

r.
  
W

e
 a

re
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
n

g
 a

p
p

ro
x
 

£
8

m
 o

v
e

r 
3
 y

e
a

rs
, 

th
is

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ilo
t,

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 p
h

a
s
e

d
 r

o
ll 

o
u

t 
o

n
 b

u
s
e

s
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 b

y
 a

 p
ilo

t 
o

n
 r

a
il 

p
ri
o

r 
to

 t
h
e

 n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
ro

llo
u

t 
o

n
 r

a
il.

 

7
 

C
re

a
te

 a
 s

e
ri
e

s
 o

f 
P

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

 -
 2

0
1

5
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
a

rd
if
f 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 T
ra

v
e

l 
C

e
n

tr
e
 a

 n
e

w
 P

a
rk

 a
n

d
 R

id
e

 s
it
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 

Tudalen 16



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 2
 o

f 
1
7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 m
o
d

a
l 

in
te

rc
h
a
n

g
e

s
 (

b
y
 

2
0

1
4

).
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

a
s
t 
o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
 a

t 
P

e
n

tw
y
n

. 
 A

 r
a
il 

P
a

rk
 a

n
d

 R
id

e
 s

it
e

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

t 
A

b
e

rc
y
n

o
n

. 
 

8
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 l
a

rg
e

r 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

tr
a
ff

ic
 

fr
e
e

 w
a

lk
in

g
 a

n
d

 
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

o
u

te
s
 a

n
d

 
s
e

g
re

g
a

te
d

 p
u

b
lic

 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 r
o
u

te
s
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

 –
 2

0
1

5
 

(t
h
is

 i
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 a
 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t)
 

W
a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d

 c
y
c
lin

g
 r

o
u

te
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 f

u
n
d

e
d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 p

la
n

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
b

a
s
is

. 
T

h
is

 y
e

a
r 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 £

5
m

ill
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 W

a
le

s
. 
 

9
 

M
a

in
ta

in
 S

a
fe

 
R

o
u

te
s
 i
n

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
a
fe

r 
w

a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d

 c
y
c
lin

g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

 –
 2

0
1

5
  

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t  

A
n

n
u
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 i
s
 a

llo
c
a

te
d
 t

o
 s

a
fe

 r
o
u

te
s
 i
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 s

c
h
e

m
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
k
e

 
w

a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d

 c
y
c
lin

g
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 w

it
h

in
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
. 
T

h
is

 y
e

a
r 

£
5

 m
ill

io
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
llo

c
a

te
d

. 

1
1
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

W
a

lk
in

g
 

a
n

d
 C

y
c
lin

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

 O
u

r 
a
llo

c
a

te
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 i
s
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

s
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

O
u
r 

p
la

n
 i
s
 t
o

 r
e
n
e

w
 

th
e

 W
a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d

 C
y
c
lin

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 s

h
o

rt
ly

. 

1
2
 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

fo
r 

w
a

lk
in

g
 a

n
d

 
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

 –
 2

0
1

5
 

(t
h
is

 i
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 a
 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t)
 

S
e

e
 i
n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 r

e
f 

8
&

9
. 

1
4
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
o
f 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 (

b
y
 

2
0

1
1

).
 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
  

T
h
e

 P
u

b
lic

 T
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 U

s
e
rs

’ 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

re
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 

s
u

b
m

it
 a

 r
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 W
e
ls

h
 M

in
is

te
rs

 o
u
tl
in

in
g
 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o
n

s
.  

1
5
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

a
k
e

 u
p

 o
f 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
  

W
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 C
a

rm
a

rt
h
e

n
 a

n
d

 C
e

re
d

ig
io

n
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 t
o

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 B
u

s
 

Tudalen 17



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 3
 o

f 
1
7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

B
u

s
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 a

n
d

 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 
(b

y
 2

0
1

4
).

 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

lo
n

g
 t
h

e
 

k
e

y
 b

u
s
 c

o
rr

id
o

r 
b
e

tw
e

e
n

 A
b

e
ry

s
tw

y
t h

 a
n

d
 C

a
rm

a
rt

h
e

n
. 
 E

x
p

e
c
t 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 t
o

 b
e

 
m

a
d
e

 l
a

te
r 

th
is

 y
e

a
r.

 
 W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 P
o

w
y
s
 t

o
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 a
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 f

re
q
u

e
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 
h

ig
h

e
r 

q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 T

4
 T

ra
w

s
C

y
m

ru
 R

o
u

te
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 N

e
w

to
w

n
 a

n
d

 M
e
rt

h
y
r.

  
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
c
c
o
m

p
a

n
ie

d
 b

y
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 6
 n

e
w

, 
lo

w
 f

lo
o

r,
 b

u
s
e

s
. 
E

x
p

e
c
t 

n
e

w
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
. 

1
6
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 o
n

 
p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
  

P
u

b
lic

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 U
s
e

rs
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 e

n
g
a

g
in

g
 w

it
h

 u
s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
o

 g
a

th
e

r 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
n

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 s
u

b
m

it
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

M
in

is
te

r 
a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
e
a

c
h

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 

1
7
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 o

n
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
L

o
c
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 G

ra
n

t.
 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
  

M
in

is
te

r 
h
a

s
 a

n
n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
L

T
S

G
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
t 
a

 r
e
d

u
c
e

d
 r

a
te

 o
f 

£
8

m
 (

1
2

/1
3

) 
c
o

m
p
a

re
d
 t

o
 £

1
1
m

 (
1
1
/1

2
).

  
 W

e
 a

re
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 u

rg
e

n
t 
d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 b
u

s
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 o

n
 

p
u

tt
in

g
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
 n

e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

fi
n
a

n
c
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 l
o
o

k
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 a
t 

h
o

w
 w

e
 

p
h

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e
 t
h

e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 

1
8
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 s
e

c
to

r 
to

 
e

n
a
b

le
 b

e
tt

e
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 

(b
y
 2

0
1

4
).

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
  

L
in

k
 t

o
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t  

R
in

g
 f

e
n

c
e

d
 1

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 G

ra
n

t 
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
£

4
0

0
,0

0
0

 o
v
e
r 

th
e

 n
e

x
t 

th
re

e
 

y
e

a
rs

 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 s
e

e
 t

h
e
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

w
a

rd
 w

in
n

in
g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 B

w
c
a

b
u

s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 m

o
re

 r
e
m

o
te

 r
u
ra

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n
 C

a
rm

a
rt

h
e

n
s
h

ir
e

 a
n
d

 C
e
re

d
ig

io
n

s
h

ir
e

. 

1
9
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 i
n
n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
  

P
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
£

4
0
0

,0
0

0
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

3
 y

e
a

rs
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
w

c
a

b
u

s
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 r

u
ra

l 
C

a
rm

a
rt

h
e

n
s
h

ir
e

 a
n
d

 C
e
re

d
ig

io
n

  

2
1
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 r
e
g
u

la
to

ry
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
b
u

s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
  

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 r
e
p
o

rt
 o

n
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
lo

c
a

l 
b

u
s
 m

a
rk

e
t,

 w
e

 w
ill

 b
ri
n

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 p
la

n
s
 t
o

 c
o
m

m
e

n
c
e
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

i o
n

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 A
c
t 

2
0

0
8
 o

n
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 d
u

ri
n
g
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
. 
 

Tudalen 18



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 4
 o

f 
1
7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

 (
b
y
 2

0
1

0
).

 

2
3
 

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
S

ta
ti
o

n
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

(N
S

IP
+

),
 b

y
 2

0
1

4
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
  

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 u
n
d

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
o
rt

ia
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

a
il 

in
d

u
s
tr

y
. 

F
u
rt

h
e

r 
b

id
s
 f

o
r 

N
S

IP
+

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 m

u
s
t 
b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 1

4
 M

a
y
 

2
0

1
2

. 

2
4
 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
 a

n
d
 

in
v
e

s
t 

in
 r

o
lli

n
g
 

s
to

c
k
 (

b
y
 2

0
1
4

).
 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

la
s
s
 1

5
3

 a
n
d

 1
7

5
 f

le
e

ts
 u

s
e
d

 o
n

 r
e
g
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d
 

lo
n

g
 d

is
ta

n
c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n
 W

a
le

s
 w

e
re

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
1

. 
A

 r
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 C

la
s
s
 1

5
8

 f
le

e
t,
 a

ls
o
 u

s
e

d
 o

n
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 l
o

n
g

-d
is

ta
n

c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

is
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

fo
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 i
n

 s
u
m

m
e

r 
2
0

1
2

. 
U

p
g
ra

d
e
d

 r
o

lli
n
g
 s

to
c
k
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
-

S
o

u
th

 E
x
p

re
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 2

0
1

2
. 
 

2
5
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
c
y
c
le

s
 

o
n

 n
e

w
 a

n
d

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

tr
a
in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
rs

u
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

w
id

e
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 s

to
c
k
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 

w
it
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

la
s
s
 1

5
8
 w

o
rk

. 
 

 

2
6
 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 
w

it
h

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 o
n

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

e
le

c
tr

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
G

re
a

t 
W

e
s
te

rn
 

M
a

in
 L

in
e
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

T
h
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

n
 

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e

m
e

n
t 
is

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r.
  
W

e
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 D
fT

. 

2
8
 

M
a

in
ta

in
 o

u
r 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 f
re

e
 

c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 

tr
a
v
e

l 
o

n
 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

e
ld

e
rl
y
 

a
n

d
 d

is
a
b

le
d

 
p

e
o
p

le
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t  

H
a
v
e

 a
g
re

e
d

 a
 3

 y
e

a
r 

d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 b

u
s
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 a

n
d

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 m

a
in

ta
in

 
e

n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
p
a

s
s
 h

o
ld

e
rs

 w
h

ils
t 

e
x
te

n
d

in
g
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 t
o

 s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 w
a

r 
v
e

te
ra

n
s
 a

n
d

 p
e

rs
o
n
n

e
l,
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 s
e

e
 a

ro
u

n
d

 £
2

1
3
m

 b
e

in
g
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

n
e

x
t 

3
 y

e
a

rs
. 
 

3
1
 

H
e
lp

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
  

W
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 D
H

S
S

 t
o

 l
o
o

k
 a

t 
h

o
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 t

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 s

e
c
to

r 
c
a
n
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 

Tudalen 19



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 5
 o

f 
1
7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
n

o
n

-e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 

p
a

ti
e
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

n
o

n
-e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 p

a
ti
e

n
t 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

. 

3
2
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 a

 w
a

y
 t

h
a

t 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 t
h
e

 
R

e
g
io

n
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 

P
la

n
s
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

B
id

s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 C

o
n

s
o

rt
ia

 i
n

 F
e
b

ru
a
ry

. 
M

in
is

te
r 

to
 

d
e

c
id

e
 o

n
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 t
h
e

 C
o

n
s
o

rt
ia

 i
n
 2

0
1
2

/1
3
. 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 C
o

n
s
o

rt
ia

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 M

in
is

te
rs

’ 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

. 
  

3
3
 

P
ro

d
u

c
e

 R
o

u
te

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 f
o

r 
e
a

c
h

 
c
o

rr
id

o
r 

(b
y
 2

0
1

1
).

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

F
ir
s
t 

d
ra

ft
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

2
. 

3
4
 

M
a

x
im

is
e
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

 j
o

u
rn

e
y
 

ti
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 
s
a
fe

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 t
ru

n
k
 

ro
a

d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

A
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 c

a
p

tu
re

 d
y
n

a
m

ic
 j
o
u

rn
e

y
 t

im
e

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u
t 

th
e

 t
ru

n
k
 r

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 m
o
to

rw
a

y
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 s
h
o

rt
ly

. 
T

h
e

 o
u

tp
u

t 
o
f 

th
is

 s
y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 d

y
n

a
m

ic
 r

o
u
te

 a
d

v
ic

e
 (

jo
u

rn
e

y
 t

im
e

s
 v

ia
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
ro

u
te

s
) 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 d

e
te

c
ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 a

d
v
is

in
g
 o

f 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

a
rl
ie

s
t 

s
ta

g
e

s
. 
T

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 
h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h
e

 a
p
p

ra
is

a
l 
o
f 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
s
c
h
e

m
e

s
. 

 
 In

te
lli

g
e

n
t 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 S
y
s
te

m
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 C

C
T

V
 a

n
d

 V
a

ri
a

b
le

 M
e

s
s
a
g
e

 
S

ig
n

s
) 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 r
o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 (

A
4

6
5

 c
o

rr
id

o
r 

a
s
 a

 m
a

in
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 M
4
 d

iv
e

rs
io

n
) 

a
n

d
 a

t 
k
e

y
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 p
o
in

ts
 (

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
e

s
 t

o
 M

a
c
h

y
n

lle
th

 i
s
 a

n
 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
).

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 m

a
d

e
 a

t 
a

c
c
id

e
n
t 

c
lu

s
te

r 
s
it
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 M
4

 a
t 

J
4
1
, 

J
4

2
 a

n
d

 J
4
6

, 
A

4
0

7
6

 a
t 

C
u
tt

y
 S

a
rk

 D
ri

v
e

 M
ilf

o
rd

 H
a

v
e

n
 a

n
d
 o

n
 P

o
p
e

 H
ill

 n
e

a
r 

M
ilf

o
rd

 H
a

v
e

n
 t

o
 

re
d

u
c
e

 p
e

rs
o
n

a
l 
in

ju
ry

 a
c
c
id

e
n
ts

. 
 I
n

 D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
1

 t
h

e
 M

4
 j
u

n
c
ti
o
n

 3
2
 C

o
ry

to
n

 
d

e
d

ic
a
te

d
 l
a

n
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 j
o

u
rn

e
y
 t

im
e

 r
e
lia

b
ili

ty
 

a
n

d
 j
o

u
rn

e
y
 t

im
e

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
 t

ra
v
e

lli
n

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 M
4
 e

a
s
tb

o
u

n
d

 

Tudalen 20



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 6
 o

f 
1
7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

to
 t

h
e

 A
4

7
0
 n

o
rt

h
b

o
u

n
d

. 

3
5
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

tr
u
n

k
 r

o
a
d

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 

(b
y
 2

0
1

2
).

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

B
e

in
g
 t

a
k
e
n

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 b

y
 w

o
rk

 g
ro

u
p

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o
m

p
a

c
t.

 

3
7
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 p
la

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

o
ll 

o
u

t 
o
f 

v
a

ri
a

b
le

 s
p

e
e
d

 
lim

it
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

tr
u
n

k
 r

o
a
d

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 s
a
fe

ty
, 

re
li a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 
jo

u
rn

e
y
 t

im
e

s
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

B
e

in
g
 t

a
k
e
n

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 i
n

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 s
p

e
e
d

 c
a
m

e
ra

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 W

a
le

s
. 
 

3
8
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
a
fe

r 
w

a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d

 c
y
c
lin

g
 

ro
u

te
s
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

S
e

e
 i
n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 r

e
f 

n
o
 8

&
9

. 

3
9
 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 
w

it
h

 U
K

 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

o
n

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

n
e

w
 R

o
a

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

W
o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
R

o
a

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

4
0
 

A
d

d
re

s
s
 r

o
a

d
 

s
a
fe

ty
 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 

w
h

e
re

 c
a

s
u

a
lt
y
 a

n
d

 
fa

ta
lit

y
 r

a
te

s
 a

re
 

h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h
e

 
n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

, 
o

r 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
  

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t  

C
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

n
a

ly
s
in

g
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
d

a
ta

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
c
c
id

e
n
t 

c
lu

s
te

r 
s
it
e

s
, 
a

n
d

 b
ri
n

g
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 e
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 w

o
rk

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 A

4
6

5
. 

 F
u
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
ro

a
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
, 

£
4
m

 
h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 b
e
e

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
h

is
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

(2
0

1
1

/1
2

) 
to

 t
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 R

o
a

d
 C

a
s
u

a
lt
y
 

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

. 
 

Tudalen 21



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 7
 o

f 
1
7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 
is

s
u
e

s
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 

4
1
 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 

m
o

to
rc

y
c
lis

t 
c
a

s
u

a
lt
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
a

 m
ix

 o
f 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

 s
a
fe

r 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
  

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t  

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 m
o

to
rc

y
c
lis

t 
a

s
 a

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 g

ro
u

p
, 

w
e

 w
ill

 t
a

rg
e

t 
m

o
to

rc
y
c
lis

ts
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e

 R
o
a

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
. 

4
2
 

In
tr

o
d
u

c
e

 a
c
ti
v
e

 
tr

a
v
e

l 
m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 o

u
r 

b
u

s
ie

s
t 

ro
u

te
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 
fl
o
w

s
 (

b
y
 2

0
1

4
).

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

V
a

ri
a

b
le

 S
p

e
e

d
 L

im
it
 s

y
s
te

m
 f

u
lly

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

a
l 
o

n
 t
h

e
 M

4
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 2

4
 t
h

e
 

C
o
ld

ra
 a

n
d

 J
u
n

c
ti
o

n
 2

9
 C

a
s
tl
e

to
n

. 
 E

le
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
v
e

 t
ra

ff
ic

 m
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
to

o
lk

it
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 o
n

 t
h
e

 A
5
5

 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 B

ri
ta

n
n

ia
 B

ri
d

g
e

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 s
p

e
e
d

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

n
 

th
e

 A
4

6
5

 i
n

 t
h

e
 M

e
rt

h
y
r 

T
y
d

fi
l 
a

re
a

. 
T

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 A
5
5

 B
ri
ta

n
n

ia
 B

ri
d

g
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 a

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 
s
p

e
e
d

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 c

o
u

p
le

d
 w

it
h

 e
n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
s
 -

 w
ill

 
b

e
 i
n

s
ta

lle
d

 t
h

is
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 

4
3
 

E
n

s
u

re
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 

m
a

k
e

s
 r

o
a

d
s
 s

a
fe

r 
fo

r 
u
s
e

rs
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 b

o
th

 r
o
a

d
s
 a

n
d

 b
ri
d

g
e

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e

r 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 s

tr
e
e

t 
lig

h
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 s
ig

n
a

ls
. 
 M

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 i
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 o

n
 a

ll 
h

ig
h

w
a

y
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

  
 S

m
a

ll 
s
c
a

le
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

 o
c
c
u

rs
 r

e
g
u

la
rl
y
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 p

o
t 
h

o
le

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
a

rr
ia

g
e

w
a

y
; 

la
rg

e
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 m

a
jo

r 
re

s
u

rf
a

c
in

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 s
k
id

d
in

g
 r

e
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 a
t 

s
it
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 w

e
t 

s
k
id

 a
c
c
id

e
n

ts
, 
a

n
d
 

b
ri
d

g
e

 r
e
w

a
te

rp
ro

o
fi
n
g
 a

re
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d

 o
n

 a
n

 a
n
n

u
a

l 
b

a
s
is

, 
a

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
a

rt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 w
h

ic
h
 a

re
 i
n

 w
o

rs
t 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
. 

 S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

c
e

n
t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 M

4
 J

2
5

 -
 

J
2

4
 r

e
s
u

rf
a

c
in

g
, 

A
4
0

 P
o

n
t 
L

e
s
n
e

v
e

n
 b

ri
d

g
e

 j
o
in

t 
re

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
a

t 
C

a
rm

a
rt

h
e

n
 a

n
d
 A

4
8

3
 

A
m

m
a

n
fo

rd
 r

e
s
u

rf
a

c
in

g
. 

Tudalen 22



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 8
 o

f 
1
7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 a

re
a

 w
h

e
re

 w
e

 a
re

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
p

la
n

n
e
d

 
c
lo

s
u

re
s
 b

y
 c

o
m

b
in

in
g
 w

o
rk

s
 w

h
e

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 m
in

im
is

in
g
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u
n

t 
o
f 

tr
a
ff

ic
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

. 
 T

h
is

 s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 e
x
p

o
s
u

re
 o

f 
ro

a
d

 
u

s
e

rs
 t
o

 o
u

r 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 w
o

rk
s
 (

tr
a
ff

ic
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t)

, 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

a
fe

ty
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
. 
 

 O
u

r 
IT

S
 r

e
la

te
d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

ls
o

 a
s
s
is

t 
b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

d
v
a

n
c
e

 w
a

rn
in

g
s
 o

f 
la

n
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 
a

n
d

 c
a

lm
in

g
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

s
 i
t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h
e

s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 w
o

rk
s
. 

4
4
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 a
n

d
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 m

o
re

 u
s
e

 
o
f 

2
0

m
p

h
 z

o
n

e
s
 i
n

 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

re
a

s
, 
in

 
lin

e
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
g
u

id
a

n
c
e

. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

W
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 S

a
fe

r 
R

o
u
te

s
 I

n
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 g

ra
n

t 
a
n
d

 R
o

a
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 g

ra
n

t 
b
o

th
 f
u

n
d

 t
h
e

 2
0

m
p

h
 z

o
n

e
s
.  

4
5
 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 o
u

r 
p
ilo

t 
tr

a
ff

ic
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

o
n

 t
h
e

 A
5
5

 
a

n
d

 M
4
.  

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

C
o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 p
o

lic
e

 h
a

s
 l
e

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 T

ra
ff

ic
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 a

llo
w

e
d

 r
o
a
d

 p
o

lic
in

g
 u

n
it
s
, 

w
h

o
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e

a
lt
 

w
it
h

 s
u

c
h

 i
n

c
id

e
n
ts

, 
to

 b
e

 u
ti
lis

e
d

 i
n

 a
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
a
n

n
e

r.
  
T

h
e
 T

ra
ff

ic
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 i
n
 a

 m
o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

 
m

a
n
n

e
r,

 b
y
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

tr
a
ff

ic
. 

  
 T

h
e

 p
ilo

t 
is

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 p
ro

v
e

n
. 

T
h
e

 T
ra

ff
ic

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 n

o
w

 
o

p
e

ra
te

s
. 

4
7
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 
a

n
d

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
th

e
 f

re
ig

h
t 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 
s
e

c
to

r 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 

W
a
le

s
 F

re
ig

h
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

M
in

is
te

r 
a
g
re

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

-e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t
h

e
 W

a
le

s
 F

re
ig

h
t 

G
ro

u
p

 t
o

 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 W

a
le

s
 F

re
ig

h
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

4
8
 

M
a

in
ta

in
 a

 f
re

ig
h

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

W
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
 F

re
ig

h
t 

B
e

s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 w
e

b
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
. 
 

Tudalen 23



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 9
 o

f 
1
7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

b
e

s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
n

tr
o
d
u

c
in

g
 a

 
v
a

n
 b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

5
0
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 F

re
ig

h
t 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 G

ra
n

ts
 t
o

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

fr
e
ig

h
t 
fr

o
m

 r
o

a
d
 t

o
 

ra
il.

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

T
h
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 o

p
e

n
 t
o

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

w
it
h

 d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 w

it
h

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
n
e

w
 a

p
p

lic
a

n
ts

.  
 In

 t
h
e

 l
a

s
t 
1

0
 y

e
a

rs
 £

5
.7

 m
ill

io
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 F
re

ig
h

t 
F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 g

ra
n

ts
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 

8
.6

 m
ill

io
n

 t
o

n
n
e

s
 o

f 
g
o

o
d

s
 t
o

 b
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 b

y
 r

a
il,

 r
e
m

o
v
in

g
 5

.8
 m

ill
io

n
 l
o

rr
y
 m

ile
s
. 

 

5
2
 

A
d

a
p
t 

a
 m

o
re

 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 n
e

w
 

a
n

d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 t

ru
n

k
 

ro
a

d
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

m
o

to
rw

a
y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

T
h
e

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 S
y
s
te

m
s
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 n

o
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 i
n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 3

4
 a

n
d

 4
2
 a

llo
w

 t
h

e
 

W
e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
to

 M
a

k
e

 B
e
tt

e
r 

U
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 c
a

p
a
c
it
y
. 

 
 A

 r
e
v
is

e
d

 r
o

a
d

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

ra
ft

e
d

 a
n
d

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
h

ic
h
 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 u

s
 t

o
 d

e
p

lo
y
 a

 s
a
fe

, 
fi
t 
fo

r 
p
u

rp
o

s
e

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
k
e

s
 b

e
s
t 
u

s
e

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 t

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 o

ff
e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
e
n

e
rg

y
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 l
o

w
e

r 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
. 

 D
u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
e
s
u

rf
a

c
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

4
7

7
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 B

a
n

g
e

s
to

n
 a

n
d

 W
a
te

rl
o
o

 t
h
e

 p
la

n
in

g
s
 

w
e

re
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
 t

o
 f
o

rm
 t
h

e
 s

u
b

-b
a

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
h
a
re

d
 u

s
e
 p

a
th

. 

5
3
 

W
o
rk

 t
o
 t

h
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 u
n
d

e
r 

E
u

ro
p
e

a
n

 a
n
d

 U
K

 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

n
o

is
e
, 

a
ir
 q

u
a

lit
y
, 

w
a

te
r 

p
o

llu
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
o

ils
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

N
o
is

e
 -

  
N

o
is

e
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 s

c
h
e

m
e

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 i
n

 N
o

rt
h
 W

a
le

s
 o

n
 s

it
e

s
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 T

ru
n

k
 R

o
a

d
 N

o
is

e
 s

tu
d

y
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e

n
 i
n

 2
0

0
2

 /
 0

3
. 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
re

 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 E

S
H

 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 N

o
is

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 P
ri
o

ri
ty

 A
re

a
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 T

R
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 a

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
N

o
is

e
 D

ir
e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
N

o
is

e
 

R
e
g
u

la
ti
o
n

s
. 

 A
ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 -

 W
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

 b
y
 N

e
a
th

 P
o

rt
 T

a
lb

o
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

o
f 

th
e

 A
ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
A

re
a
 (

A
Q

M
A

) 
a

t 
M

a
rg

a
m

 /
 P

o
rt

 T
a
lb

o
t,

 w
h

ic
h
 a

d
jo

in
s
 

th
e

 M
4
. 
 T

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

Q
M

A
s
 i
n
 N

e
w

p
o

rt
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 M
4
 

C
o
rr

id
o

r 
E

n
h

a
n

c
e
m

e
n

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
. 

Tudalen 24



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 1
0
 o

f 
1

7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

 W
a
te

r 
p

o
llu

ti
o

n
 -

  
T

h
e

 T
ru

n
k
 R

o
a

d
 A

g
e

n
ts

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 m

a
p

p
in

g
 t
h
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 o
u

tf
a

lls
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 t
ru

n
k
 r

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 m
o
to

rw
a

y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 p
o

llu
ti
o

n
 r

is
k
s
 f

ro
m

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
  

ru
n

o
ff

 a
n
d

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 W

a
te

r 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 D
ir
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 R

iv
e

r 
B

a
s
in

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
P

la
n

s
. 

  
  
  
  

5
4
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 
re

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
m

o
to

rw
a

y
 a

n
d

 t
ru

n
k
 

ro
a

d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

D
iv

e
rs

io
n

 r
o
u

te
 f

o
r 

m
o

to
rw

a
y
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

; 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 s

im
ila

r 
ro

u
te

s
 f

o
r 

tr
u
n

k
 r

o
a

d
s
. 

A
 s

tu
d

y
 

is
 u

n
d
e

rw
a

y
 t

o
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
tr

u
n

k
 r

o
a
d

s
 l
ia

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a

n
g
e

. 

5
5
 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 
p

ro
te

c
t,
 c

o
n

s
e

rv
e

 
a

n
d

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

 t
h
e

 
h

is
to

ri
c
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t,

 s
o

ils
 

a
n

d
 g

e
o

lo
g
y
, 

la
n

d
s
c
a
p

e
/t
o

w
n

s
c
a

p
e

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
h

a
b

it
a

ts
 a

n
d

 
s
p

e
c
ie

s
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

, 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 T

ru
n

k
 R

o
a

d
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 o
f 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 i
n
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
, 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 D
e

s
ig

n
 M

a
n

u
a

l 
fo

r 
R

o
a
d

s
 a

n
d
 B

ri
d

g
e

s
. 

 A
c
ti
o
n

s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 o
n

 m
e
a

s
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

h
a

b
it
a

ts
 a

n
d

 
s
p

e
c
ie

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 T

ru
n

k
 R

o
a

d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 T
ru

n
k
 R

o
a

d
 E

s
ta

te
 B

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 r

o
u

n
d

s
. 

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
, 
c
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a
n

c
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 T
ru

n
k
 R

o
a

d
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

 M
a
n

u
a

l 
d
u

e
 f
o

r 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
S

p
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
2

. 
 T

h
e

 R
e

v
is

e
d

 M
a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 M

a
n
u

a
l 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 r
e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 T

ru
n

k
 

R
o
a

d
 A

g
e
n

ts
 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
 R

o
u

te
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

s
 a

s
 t

h
e

 m
e
a

n
s
 f
o

r 
d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n
ts

. 

5
6
 

Y
 G

e
ra

llt
 G

y
m

ro
 

H
o
ly

h
e

a
d

 t
o

 C
a

rd
if
f 

fa
s
t 

tr
a
in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
d

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

T
h
e

 e
x
p

re
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
in

g
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 u
n

ti
l 
M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
. 

Tudalen 25



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 1
1
 o

f 
1

7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

5
7
 

E
n

h
a
n

c
in

g
 c

a
p
a

c
it
y
 

o
f 

th
e

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
ra

il 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

S
h

re
w

s
b

u
ry

 a
n

d
 

C
h
e

s
te

r,
 v

ia
 

W
re

x
h

a
m

 (
b
y
 2

0
1

2
) 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 p
h

a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

g
in

 n
e

x
t 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

2
0

1
2
/1

3
. 
  

6
0
 

A
4

7
0
 a

t 
G

e
lli

g
e

m
ly

n
 (

s
ta

rt
 

w
o

rk
 b

y
 2

0
1

1
).

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 o
n

 s
it
e

 i
n

 M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

2
. 

6
1
 

A
4

7
0
 f

ro
m

 M
a
e

s
 y

r 
H

e
lm

a
u
 t

o
 C

ro
s
s
 

F
o
x
e

s
 (

s
ta

rt
 w

o
rk

 
b

y
 2

0
1

1
).

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 o
n

 s
it
e

 i
n

 M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

2
. 

6
8
 

A
4

7
0
 a

n
d

 A
4

8
3
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 B
u

ilt
h

 
W

e
lls

 (
s
ta

rt
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 

2
0

1
4

).
 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
3

-2
0
1

4
 

In
te

ri
m

 w
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
e
d

 t
o

 b
e

g
in

 i
n

 2
0
1

3
/1

4
. 

7
0
 

A
4

8
3
 i
n

 N
e

w
to

w
n

 
(s

ta
rt

 w
o

rk
 b

y
 

2
0

1
4

).
 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
4

-2
0
1

5
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 A

g
e

n
t 

ro
le

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 C
o

rd
e

ro
y
/C

a
p

it
a

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

. 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 a
p

p
o

in
t 

E
C

I 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
. 

7
1
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 
fo

r 
th

e
 A

4
8

3
 a

t 
L

la
n

d
e

ilo
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
3

-2
0
1

4
 

P
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
. 

 7
4
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

la
tf

o
rm

s
 

a
t 

P
o
n

ty
p

ri
d

d
, 

C
a
e

rp
h

ill
y
 a

n
d

 
B

a
rr

y
 (

s
ta

rt
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 

2
0

1
4

).
 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

3
 

C
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 p
h

a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

g
in

 n
e

x
t 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

2
0

1
2
/1

3
. 
  

Tudalen 26



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 1
2
 o

f 
1

7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

7
5
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
a

rr
ia

g
e

s
 

to
 p

e
a

k
 t

im
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
 

s
ta

ti
o

n
 a

t 
E

n
e

rg
ly

n
 

(b
y
 2

0
1

4
).

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2
 

W
e
 a

re
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 R
a

il 
(w

it
h

 C
o

n
v
e

rg
e

n
c
e

 f
u
n

d
in

g
) 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 n
e

w
 s

ta
ti
o
n

 a
t 

E
n

e
rg

ly
n

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

ra
c
k
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
a

lli
n
g
 a

t 
T

ir
-P

h
il 

(w
it
h

 C
R

C
 f

u
n
d

in
g
) 

in
 

c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 R

a
il’

s
 C

a
rd

if
f 

A
re

a
 R

e
s
ig

n
a

lli
n
g
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 T
h
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

re
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
b

ili
s
e
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 s

ta
rt

 i
n
 2

0
1
2

 a
n

d
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

-
1

4
. 

  

7
6
 

P
la

n
s
 t
o

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 l
in

e
s
 f

ro
m

 
P

o
n

ty
p

ri
d

d
 a

n
d

 
C

a
e

rp
h

ill
y
 t

o
 

C
a
rd

if
f.
 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
4

-2
0
1

5
. 

T
h
e

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
s
 d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 
n

e
w

 p
la

tf
o

rm
s
 a

t 
P

o
n

ty
p

ri
d

d
 a

n
d

 C
a
e

rp
h

ill
y
 a

n
d

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 R

a
il’

s
 C

a
rd

if
f 

A
re

a
 s

ig
n

a
lli

n
g
 

re
n

e
w

a
l 
p

ro
je

c
t.

  
 

7
7
 

R
e

-d
o

u
b

le
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 

lin
e

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 

G
o

w
e

rt
o
n

 a
n
d

 
L

o
u

g
h

o
r.

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

3
 

C
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 p
h

a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

g
in

 n
e

x
t 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

2
0

1
2
/1

3
. 
  

7
8
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h
a

lf
-

h
o

u
rl
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 

V
a

le
 o

f 
G

la
m

o
rg

a
n

 
lin

e
, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
a
il’

s
 

C
a
rd

if
f 

A
re

a
 

R
e
s
ig

n
a

lli
n
g
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
4

-2
0
1

5
 

T
h
e

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
s
 d

e
p
e
n

d
e
n

t 
o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 
p

la
tf

o
rm

 a
t 

B
a

rr
y
 a

n
d

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
a

il’
s
 C

a
rd

if
f 

A
re

a
 R

e
s
ig

n
a

lli
n

g
 p

ro
je

c
t.

  
 

7
9
 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 
a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 t
h

e
 U

K
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

to
 

m
a

k
e
 s

u
re

 W
a
le

s
 i
s
 

c
o

n
n
e

c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 h

ig
h

 
s
p

e
e
d

 r
a
il 

n
e
tw

o
rk

. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

T
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
is

 p
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 U

K
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
W

a
le

s
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 
fr

o
m

 g
o

o
d

 c
o
n

n
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 /

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 f
u
tu

re
 h

ig
h

 s
e

e
d

 r
a
il 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

M
id

la
n

d
s
 h

u
b

 s
ta

ti
o
n

 t
o

 b
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 n

e
a

r 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

. 
 

Tudalen 27



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 1
3
 o

f 
1

7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

8
0
 

E
x
te

n
d

 t
h
e

 h
a

lf
-

h
o

u
rl
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f

ro
m

 
M

a
e

s
te

g
 t

o
 C

a
rd

if
f 

a
n

d
 B

r a
c
k
la

 
S

ta
ti
o
n

. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
4

-2
0
1

5
 

W
e
 a

re
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 R
a

il 
(w

it
h

 C
o

n
v
e

rg
e

n
c
e

 f
u
n

d
in

g
) 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

ra
c
k
 

a
n

d
 s

ig
n

a
lli

n
g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 M
a

e
s
te

g
 b

ra
n

c
h

. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 f

o
r 

a
n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
h

a
lf
-h

o
u

rl
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 M

a
e

s
te

g
 a

n
d

 B
ri
d

g
e

n
d

 a
s
 p

h
a

s
e

 o
n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 
T

h
e
 

s
e

c
o

n
d

 p
h
a

s
e

 w
ill

 e
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 t

o
 C

a
rd

if
f 

a
n

d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 n
e

w
 

s
ta

ti
o

n
 a

t 
B

ra
c
k
la

. 
 T

h
e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 p
h

a
s
e
 c

a
n
 n

o
t 
b

e
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 R
a

il’
s
 C

a
rd

if
f 

A
re

a
 R

e
s
ig

n
a

lli
n
g
 p

ro
je

c
t.

  
 

8
1
 

In
tr

o
d
u

c
e

 v
a

ri
a

b
le

 
s
p

e
e
d

 l
im

it
s
 t
o

 
s
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 
c
o

n
g
e

s
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 s
a
fe

ty
, 

s
ta

rt
in

g
 i
n

 2
0
1

0
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

S
e

e
 4

2
. 

8
2
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
 

d
u

a
lli

n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

4
6

5
 

H
e
a

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

V
a

lle
y
s
 r

o
a

d
 f

ro
m

 
B

ry
n

m
a

w
r 

to
 

T
re

d
e

g
a

r 
a
n
d

 s
ta

rt
 

fr
o
m

 G
ilw

e
rn

 t
o

 
B

ry
n

m
a

w
r 

(b
y
 

2
0

1
4

),
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 

fr
o
m

 D
o

w
la

is
 T

o
p

 
to

 t
h
e

 A
4

7
0
, 

a
n

d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 A

4
7
0

 t
o

 
H

ir
w

a
u

n
 (

b
y
 2

0
2

0
).

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
  

A
 P

u
b

lic
 L

o
c
a

l 
In

q
u

ir
y
 o

n
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

 B
ry

n
m

a
w

r 
to

 T
re

d
e

g
a

r 
s
ta

rt
s
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 (
2
0

1
2

).
  

S
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
, 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
u

ld
 s

ta
rt

 
la

te
r 

th
is

 y
e

a
r 

(2
0
1

2
).

 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 2

 G
ilw

e
rn

 t
o

 B
ry

n
m

a
w

r 
a
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
to

r 
w

a
s
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 u
n
d

e
r 

a
n

 E
a

rl
y
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
to

r 
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

rm
 o

f 
c
o
n

tr
a
c
t 

in
 J

u
n
e

 2
0

1
1
. 

 I
t 
is

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 t
o

 p
u

b
lis

h
 d

ra
ft

 O
rd

e
rs

 a
n

d
 a

n
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

in
 A

u
tu

m
n

 2
0

1
3

. 
 S

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
, 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 c
o
u

ld
 s

ta
rt

 b
y
 l
a

te
 2

0
1

4
/e

a
rl
y
 2

0
1
5

. 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 5

 D
o

w
la

is
 T

o
p

 t
o

 A
4
7

0
 a

n
d

 A
4
6

5
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

 A
4
7

0
 t
o

 H
ir
w

a
u

n
 w

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
p

p
o

in
ti
n
g
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
a

d
v
is

o
rs

 l
a

te
r 

th
is

 s
p

ri
n

g
 (

2
0

1
2

).
 

 

8
4
 

A
4

7
7
 f

ro
m

 S
t 

C
le

a
rs

 t
o

 R
e
d

 
P

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
g
in

 i
n
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

2
. 

Tudalen 28



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 1
4
 o

f 
1

7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

R
o
s
e

s
 (

s
ta

rt
 w

o
rk

 
b

y
 2

0
1

4
).

 

8
5
 

A
4

0
 f

ro
m

 L
la

n
d

d
e

w
i 

V
e

lf
ry

 t
o

 P
e

n
b

le
w

in
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
3

-2
0
1

4
 

P
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
. 

9
1
 

P
a

c
k
a

g
e

 o
f 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 t
o

 d
e

a
l 

w
it
h

 r
e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

, 
s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 r
e
lia

b
ili

ty
 

is
s
u
e

s
 o

n
 M

4
 

a
ro

u
n
d

 N
e

w
p

o
rt

. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

R
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 l
a
te

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

. 

9
2
 

In
te

g
ra

te
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

c
y
c
le

 r
o
u

te
s
 i
n

 
s
o

u
th

-e
a

s
t 
W

a
le

s
 

th
a

t 
a

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 
u

n
d
e

r 
E

U
 

C
o
n

v
e

rg
e

n
c
e

 
fu

n
d

in
g
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

T
h

is
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 S

E
W

T
A

 w
h

o
 a

re
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 c

y
c
le

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s
 

in
 t

h
e
 S

o
u

th
 E

a
s
t 
W

a
le

s
 a

re
a

. 
W

e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

a
llo

c
a

te
s
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 p

u
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 b
y
 t

h
e

 r
e
le

v
a

n
t 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
. 

9
3
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 c

a
p
a

c
it
y
 

o
f 

A
5
5

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
M

e
n

a
i,
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 f

o
r 

w
a

lk
e
rs

 
a

n
d

 c
y
c
lis

ts
. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
 

C
o
n

s
u

lt
a
n

ts
 t
o

 b
e

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 t

o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 d

e
ta

ils
. 

D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 w

it
h

 I
s
le

 o
f 

A
n

g
le

s
e

y
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
G

ri
d

 t
o

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

 

9
4
 

A
d

d
re

s
s
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 
is

s
u
e

s
 o

n
 A

5
5

 f
ro

m
 

A
b

e
rg

w
y
n

g
re

g
y
n

 t
o

 
T

a
i’r

 M
e

ib
io

n
, 

a
n

d
 

ro
u

n
d
a

b
o
u

ts
 a

t 
J
u

n
c
ti
o
n

s
 1

5
 a

n
d

 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 J
c
ts

 1
5
 &

 1
6

, 
2

0
1
2

-2
0

1
5
 

T
a

i’r
 –

 b
e

y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

A
5

5
 J

u
n

c
ti
o
n

s
 1

5
 a

n
d

 1
6

 –
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 t
o

 b
e
 a

p
p
o

in
te

d
 t

o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 d

e
ta

ils
. 

  

Tudalen 29



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 1
5
 o

f 
1

7
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

o
 D

a
te

 

1
6

. 

9
5
 

A
d

d
re

s
s
 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 

is
s
u
e

s
 i
n

 W
re

x
h

a
m

, 
C

h
e

s
te

r,
 D

e
e

s
id

e
 

tr
ia

n
g
le

. 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
2

-2
0
1

5
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 b
e

 s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 W

e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1
2

. 
 C

o
n

te
n

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 M
in

is
te

r 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
/M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2

. 

9
6
 

D
a
y
ti
m

e
 h

o
u

rl
y
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

A
b

e
ry

s
tw

y
th

 a
n

d
 

S
h

re
w

s
b

u
ry

 (
b

y
 

2
0

1
1

).
 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 2
0

1
4

-2
0
1

5
 

W
e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
is

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

in
g
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 R

a
il 

a
n

d
 A

rr
iv

a
 T

ra
in

s
 

W
a
le

s
 t
o

 d
e

te
rm

in
e
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

im
e

ta
b

le
 f

o
r 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
d

a
y
ti
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 t
h
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
a

n
 L

in
e

 i
s
 r

o
b
u

s
t 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

. 
T

h
is

 f
o

llo
w

s
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 c
o
n

c
e

rn
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 l
in

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o
d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e
w

 E
R

T
M

S
 

s
ig

n
a

lin
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
o
m

e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 t
h

a
t 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 r

a
il 

a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

to
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

. 

  

Tudalen 30



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 1
6
 o

f 
1

7
 

N
T

P
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 

5
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

2
1

s
t 

C
e
n
tu

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 p

la
n

s
. 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

1
3
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 P

u
b

lic
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 U
s
e

rs
’ 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 f
o

r 
W

a
le

s
 (

b
y
 2

0
1
0

).
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

2
0
 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 o

n
 c

iv
il 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

b
u

s
 l
a
n

e
 a

n
d

 m
o

v
in

g
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
. 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
  

2
2
 

R
e
m

o
v
in

g
 h

ig
h

 s
te

p
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

la
tf
o

rm
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
s
 –

 ‘
h
u

m
p

’ 
p

ilo
ts

 a
t 
A

b
e

rd
y
fi
 a

n
d
 V

a
lle

y
 

s
ta

ti
o

n
s
. 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

2
7
 

In
v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

re
o

p
e
n

in
g
 d

is
u

s
e

d
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 l
in

e
s
. 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

2
9
 

P
u

b
lis

h
 p

la
n

s
 t
o

 e
x
p

a
n
d

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
T

ra
w

s
C

y
m

ru
 (

b
y
 2

0
1
1

).
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 

3
0
 

M
o

d
e

rn
is

e
 t
h

e
 B

lu
e
 B

a
d

g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
. 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
  

3
6
 

P
u

b
lis

h
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h
e

 m
o
s
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 s

p
e
e

d
 l
im

it
s
 o

u
ts

id
e

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
. 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

4
6
 

In
tr

o
d
u

c
e

 n
e

w
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
h
o

m
e

 t
o

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

. 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 

5
8
 

A
4

7
0
 f

ro
m

 P
e

n
lo

y
n

 t
o

 T
a
n

 L
a

n
, 
L

la
n

rw
s
t 

(s
ta

rt
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 2

0
1

1
).

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

5
9
 

A
4

7
0
 f

ro
m

 C
w

m
b

a
c
h

 t
o

 N
e

w
b

ri
d

g
e

 (
s
ta

rt
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 2

0
1

1
).

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

6
4
 

A
4

8
7
 a

t 
P

o
rt

h
m

a
d

o
g
, 
M

in
ff

o
rd

d
 a

n
d
 T

re
m

a
d
o

g
 (

s
ta

rt
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 2

0
1

1
).

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

6
5
 

A
4

8
3
 a

t 
F

o
u

r 
C

ro
s
s
e

s
 (

s
ta

rt
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 2

0
1

1
).

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

7
2
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 T

ra
w

s
C

y
m

ru
 l
o
n

g
-d

is
ta

n
c
e

 b
u

s
 n

e
tw

o
rk

. 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
  

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 

8
3
 

A
4

0
 T

h
e

 K
e

ll 
(s

ta
rt

 w
o

rk
 b

y
 2

0
1

1
).

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

8
8
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 N
e

w
p
o

rt
 r

a
il 

s
ta

ti
o

n
. 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

8
9
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 G
a

e
r 

J
u

n
c
ti
o
n

 (
b
y
 2

0
1
1

),
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 b

y
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 f

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

h
o
u

rl
y
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

ro
m

 E
b
b

w
 V

a
le

 t
o

 C
a

rd
if
f 

a
n

d
 N

e
w

p
o

rt
. 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

 
  

Tudalen 31



A
n

n
e
x

 B
 

P
a

g
e

 1
7
 o

f 
1

7
 

N
T

P
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

li
v
e

re
d

 b
e

y
o

n
d

 2
0

1
5

 
 

N
T

P
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

f 
n

o
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 

1
0
 

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t
o

 b
ri
n

g
 d

is
u
s
e
d

 r
a
ilw

a
y
s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 t
h

e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 n
e

tw
o

rk
. 

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

ft
e

r 
2
0

1
5

 

4
9
 

T
a

k
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 a

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 a

d
v
ic

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 G

re
e
n

 F
le

e
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
, 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 c
a

r 
a
n
d

 v
a

n
 f

le
e
t 

o
p

e
ra

to
rs

. 
T

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

ft
e

r 
2
0

1
5

 

5
1
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 f

re
ig

h
t 

c
o

n
s
o

lid
a

ti
o

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 
o

n
 a

 p
ilo

t 
b

a
s
is

 .
 

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

6
2
 

A
4

7
0
 a

t 
A

llt
m

a
w

r 
 

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

6
3
 

A
4

7
0
 f

ro
m

 P
e

n
tr

e
fe

lin
 t
o

 B
o
d

n
a
n

t 
W

e
s
t 
L

o
d

g
e
  

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

6
6
 

A
4

7
0
 a

t 
R

h
a

y
a

d
e

r.
 

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

6
7
 

A
4

7
0
 a

t 
P

la
s
 M

a
e

n
a
n

 a
n

d
 B

o
d
h

y
fr

y
d

  
T

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

6
9
 

A
4

8
7
 f

ro
m

 C
a

e
rn

a
rf

o
n

 t
o

 B
o
n

tn
e

w
y
d

d
  

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

7
3
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

tr
a

-W
a
le

s
 a

ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

7
8
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h
a

lf
-h

o
u

rl
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 V

a
le

 o
f 

G
la

m
o

rg
a

n
 l
in

e
, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 R
a
il’

s
 C

a
rd

if
f 

A
re

a
 R

e
s
ig

n
a

lli
n
g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
. 

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

8
6
 

R
o

u
te

 s
tu

d
y
 o

n
 A

4
0

4
2
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 P

o
n

ty
p

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 A
b
e

rg
a

v
e

n
n

y
. 

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

8
7
 

E
x
p

re
s
s
 b

u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 C

a
rd

if
f 

a
n
d

 C
a
rd

if
f 

A
ir
p

o
rt

, 
a

n
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 
A

4
2

2
6

 F
iv

e
 M

ile
 L

a
n
e

. 
T

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

9
0
 

A
p

p
ra

is
e
 f

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

n
e

w
 s

ta
ti
o

n
 i
n
 E

b
b

w
 V

a
le

 t
o

w
n

. 
T

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

9
7
 

R
e

-e
v
a

lu
a

te
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
in

tr
o
d
u

c
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

n
 H

e
a

rt
 o

f 
W

a
le

s
 L

in
e

. 
T

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

9
8
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

4
5
8

 f
ro

m
 B

u
tt

in
g
to

n
 C

ro
s
s
 t
o
 W

o
lla

s
to

n
 C

ro
s
s
 

(w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 D
fT

).
 

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0
1

5
 

 

Tudalen 32



1 

 

PortsNAfW EB CtteeInqPaperFeb12  

 

 

CYNULLIAD CENEDLAETHOL CYMRU – NATIONAL ASSEMBLY FOR WALES 

PWLLGOR MENTER A BUSNES – ENTERPRISE & BUSINESS COMMITTEE 

 

CYSYLLTEDD RHWYNWLADOL TRWY PORTHLADDAU A FEYSYDD AWYR CYMRU 

INTERNATIONAL CONNECTIVITY THROUGH WELSH PORTS AND AIRPORTS 

 

BRIEFING PAPER                                   

Professor Stuart Cole,  

Wales Transport Research Centre, University of Glamorgan Business School 

 

 

CONTENTS 

1. Policy responsibility 

2. Potential sources of increased trade 

3. Modal opportunities and constraints in Welsh ports 

4. Port choice 

5. Land side infrastructure and quality 

6. Tourism and the cruise market 

7. Welsh ports – operation and ownership 

 

POLICY RESPONSIBILITY 

The responsibility for seaports in Wales lies with the Department for Transport (DfT) in 

Westminster. Whilst there may be an argument for the security aspects to be so positioned, 

the rationale for economic aspects deriving from port operation and development being so 

located is weak.  

This was illustrated at a seminar to discuss the DfT’s Ports Policy Consultation Paper (2006). 

An overall Great Britain view tended to concentrate on the large container ports e.g. 

Southampton, while Wales has no ports with that capacity level. 

The Welsh Government’s responsibilities for highway links and for employment and 

economic development and regeneration were therefore difficult to link into the use of 

ports as an employment generator. Taking a Great Britain overview on capacity did not take 

Eitem 3

Tudalen 33



2 

 

full recognition that while some large English ports were at capacity, many of Wales’ ports 

could take a considerably higher throughput. 

There did appear to be a lack of realisation that the consultation document was not a 

‘national’ policy as it claimed to be. It was however a perfectly good ‘England' policy. 

The conclusion to be drawn in relation to ports is that economic policy and intervention 

should be the responsibility of the Welsh Government with the proviso that appropriate 

levels of funding be attached to the Welsh Block Grant in respect of ports development. 

Unlike mainland Europe most ports in Wales are in the private sector. This can provide 

barriers to state aid. The Milford Haven Port Authority while a public body operates 

commercially at arm’s length as a trust port.  

 

.POTENTIAL SOURCES OF INCREASED TRADE  

Who is the customer? 

In the passenger transport business, it is possible to identify two types of customer, who 

may be the same person.  There is the ‘customer’ who pays, and the ‘customer’ who travels. 

 The customer of a freight transport service is more difficult to identify.  They pay for the 

transport service, but it is goods that travel.  The costs of transport are passed on.   

The freight customer may be: 

i) a product manufacturer,  

ii) another business user of the goods, such as a retailer or assembler of components 

iii) the end customer for the goods being transported or  

iv) A logistics and transport provider working on behalf of one of the other three 

categories.   

Each of these may place a different value on the key variables of time, cost and quality of 

the transport but the end customer will normally have no idea what percentage of the total 

price is for transport costs.  They may also not know what modes of transport are used.  

Decisions on mode of transport. 

It is essential to realise that many ‘decisions’ on modal choice are not a decision at all.  Most 

are a passive decision to ‘do what happened last time’.  This may be because of existing 

contracts with partners, convenience or inertia 

The customer of the transport service will generally have an idea of what transport costs are 

affordable, based on an historical view of ‘what it cost last time’.  The EU study on Freight 

Integrators (September 2003) identified that transport decisions are taken firstly on price, 

and secondly on timescale.  The modal preference is not usually part of the decision.   

Tudalen 34



3 

 

Only when there is a new traffic flow will a modal choice be made.  Even then, in many 

instances the ‘choice’ is based on extending previous transport patterns. 

If there is a decision to change mode of transport, that decision may not be immediately 

implemented.  The EU study also found that for an existing traffic flow it can take 6 to 12 

months to make a change in the mode of transport used.  Hence the considered view that a 

new transport service needs at least three years of operation to reach a stable level of 

traffic. 

       

In 2006, a report, Wales and the Atlantic Arc: Developing Ports (1) found that the modal 

choice by manufacturers and freight forwarders was based firstly on price and overall 

journey time second. Quality of service and reliability were also important and could give 

ports a competitive advantage over road.  

However there was also inertia by transport operators and international logistics companies 

to change from their existing mode of transport. There was a lack of knowledge of Welsh 

ports in other EU countries and this has to be overcome if new services are to be developed 

in partnership with other ports. 

It would be a valuable output of the report if the actions by ports themselves and also by 

the appropriate government (WG or UK) in promoting Welsh ports could be identified and 

suggested improvements in the present position recommended. 

The Welsh ports studied had sufficient spare capacity and good facilities but these alone 

were not sufficient. Capacity expansion and investment were taking place elsewhere and 

seemed less constrained by EU rules on for example the environment and state funding 

Marketing and new business development does not appear to have a planned strategy and 

is often based on existing products, customers and shipping operators. A move to a new 

route can take two years and may be seen as having a greater business risk. 

A real modal shift from road to ship to divert traffic from the Channel Tunnel will involve 

winning road freight traffic which is not destined for Welsh ports or their immediate 

hinterlands. Thus there follows a need to examine and invest in existing road and rail links to 

/ from Welsh ports to English urban destinations as well as the short sea shipping 

customers. 

Ports can however enable added value operations to take place such as packaging and 

warehouse facilities with the associated employment benefits. 

The use of larger container ships reinforces industry concentration for ports with smaller 

ports looking at options for feeder operations. Brest provides a feeder service form 

northern France to Rotterdam for example. (2) 

Tudalen 35



4 

 

A difficulty arises in identifying potential sources of new operators. The market is large and 

while we might ask for evidence from well-known logistics operators (e.g. DHL, Maersk, 

Christian Salvesen, Norbert Dentressangle and Exel Logistics) car distributors such as Gefco 

or from retailers (e.g. Tesco) they are unlikely to provide us with the answers to our 

questions unless by chance they are in the market already. 

However there is an advantage to be gained in asking these companies for evidence. There 

has been a concentration and growth of international logistics companies. 

References 

(1) Wales and the Atlantic Arc: Developing Ports, Wales Transport Research Centre, 

University of Glamorgan for the Welsh Assembly Government 

http://transport.reserach.glam.ac.uk/projects/Atlantic Arc 

 

(2) Intermodality in Freight Transport, Wales Transport Research Centre , University of 

Glamorgan and South West Wales Economic Forum for Reseau Transnational 

Atlantique / Atlantic Transnational Network for the European Union Project (ERDF) 

www.rta-atn.org 

 

Marketing ports to the freight business. 

The nature of the freight business makes marketing and developing new business difficult.  

Traffic for ports is often based on existing customers, existing products and existing 

destinations.  Milford Haven for example, has developed business for a new Liquefied 

Natural Gas pipeline.  This is very closely allied to the existing range of petroleum related 

products through the port.  Cardiff has developed its steel business by exporting scrap steel 

and importing finished steel products for a current company customer (Level 1 in Table 1 

below). 

However, for new traffic, or for a modal change, ports and short sea shippers need to look 

beyond that. 

Table 1: Types of potential new short sea traffic for a port 

       

Level 1 (easiest to attract) 

Existing customers 

Existing traffic types/ products 

Tudalen 36



5 

 

Existing destinations 

 

Level 2 

New customers from hinterland 

New destinations 

New traffic types 

 

Level 3 (hardest to attract) 

Through traffic not originating / terminating in 

hinterland 

Other traffic not originating / terminating in 

hinterland 

 

For example (at Level 3), fruit traffic from Southern Portugal to the English Midlands 

currently travels by truck through Spain, over the Pyrenees, through France and  the 

Channel Tunnel.  It crosses two countries which are not part of its market, and two major 

natural obstacles, a mountain range and a 20 mile sea strait.  This traffic could be diverted 

to a short sea route between say Lisbon and Swansea.  This change is difficult for the ports 

of Lisbon and Swansea to develop in isolation, as the traffic does not originate or terminate 

in their immediate hinterland, and there is currently no service between the two ports.     

This ‘Level 3’ potential traffic (as in Table 1 above) is the most difficult to identify, and then 

to win.  It goes against the habitual approach to deciding which port to use.  There are 

unlikely to be existing relationships to build upon.  Market intelligence about traffic flows 

which could potentially switch may be difficult to obtain.  

Potential Products for business development 

What products might be available for switching to a short sea route into the UK through 

Wales?  Some information is given in the products imported to the UK and exported from 

the UK by road.   

Foodstuffs or other perishable goods may not be suitable for modal shift to sea transport as 

the nature of the product often makes a short journey time and flexible access essential.  

However manufactured goods or frozen foods for example may yield some possible traffic 

for transfer. Potential traffic flows for the Welsh ports are coal, aggregates and other bulks, 

Tudalen 37



6 

 

containers, forest products and steel.  These all exist today but there is scope for much 

greater traffic. A map showing the Atlantic Arc ports is in Appendix 1 

Potential trade routes based on Wales’ main sea trading routes 

 

• Ireland 

• Northern Ireland 

• Mediterranean countries (mostly in the EU) 

• Baltic states e.g. Latvia, Russia 

• Scandinavia e.g. Sweden, Finland 

• Oil producing countries to Chevron 

• Gas producing countries to LNG terminal 

• South America 

• Far East 

• Coal producing countries 

• Iron ore producing countries 

• Western France 

• Iberian peninsula (Spain and Portugal) 

• South western France for Toulouse 

 

Freight Industry Trends affecting Business Development 

This section briefly examines some of the global business trends which are likely to have an 

effect on developing ports and short sea traffic.  These trends are against the background of 

the major growth in freight traffic, and road freight in particular, as seen in the previous 

section.   

Industry concentration and the growth of international logistics companies 

As trade has developed and volumes increased, there has also been a trend towards greater 

concentration with large global companies dominating international freight transport, and 

some of the larger ports continuing to grow while small companies and facilities have closed 

or seen a reduction in business.  

Having said all this one of Wales’ most successful road haulage and logistics companies is 

Owens Road Services, Llanelli. With a fleet of 450 vehicles, 50 of which are on mainland 

Europe at any one time, it is a medium sized Welsh company who have developed their 

business over the last twenty years. 

Economies of scale – size matters 

There has also been a trend to carrying bigger volumes in larger ships. Car carrying ships can 

take over 5,000 cars. These very large container vessels will have less choice as to where 

Tudalen 38



7 

 

they can dock due to draft, length and width constraints.  This will both reduce the number 

of direct ports of call with a concentration into certain hubs, and also possibly encourage 

transhipment via feeder ship may be the most efficient form of onward distribution.  

Containerisation 

There is an increasing trend towards containerisation.  This is a result of the globalisation of 

trade.  Products from the Far East can be cheaply produced and transported in containers 

across the world to reach the key markets in the US and Europe.  These products retail far 

more cheaply than products produced directly in those markets where labour and operating 

costs are generally much higher.   

Containers which have arrived on deep sea routes, will then transfer to other modes, 

whether at Rotterdam, or in the UK’s main deep sea ports of Felixstowe, Southampton, 

Liverpool and Tilbury in the London area. 

Inland distribution of containers remains an issue in the UK.  Ports and shipping lines are 

generally keen to increase the rail share of inland distribution, but there are capacity issues 

with the UK rail network., Ports and shipping lines apparently do not see a significant role 

for distribution by coastal services as the distances are not sufficient to justify the extra 

handling costs and a high frequency service would have to be provided to compete with 

road freight. However increasing road haulage costs and reduced reliability may push deep 

sea shipping lines to make increased use of feeder vessels providing possible feeder service 

opportunities for smaller ports such as Cardiff and Swansea.  

There are currently relatively small numbers of units moved by coastal container or RoRo 

services.  There are however initiatives to move empty containers by coastal service, back to 

the main ports such as Rotterdam, using smaller ports such as Brest (Brittany) as a hub for 

this operation.  However it is clear that the facilities at the larger ports have to be geared to 

transferring traffic to short sea routes. 

The oil companies and those supplying LNG are the biggest operators, in volume terms, into 

Wales (Map in Appendix 1). However their market is currently confined to Milford Haven, 

which has the deep water facility required. While other deep water berths such as Port 

Talbot might be available if steel production, and therefore the import of iron ore, falls 

dramatically the possibility might exist for LNG/oil imports through Port Talbot if these could 

be diverted from other ports or if there was a demand for additional import facilities to 

those at Milford Haven. Transfers from Milford would provide no benefit to the Welsh 

economy but growth in this market would be a positive move.  

Wales has no hub or feeder ports to much larger ports at present. Because of our position 

on the periphery of Great Britain and the EU and the relatively short distances that for 

example containers have to travel to Southampton the major centre for that trade , 

companies are unlikely to deliver for onward shipment to Southampton or even less Bristol. 

Tudalen 39



8 

 

Brest  which acts as a feeder port for Maersk to Rotterdam is successful because of the road 

distances involved and the level of industrial output which is considerably more than in 

south west Wales.    

 

MODAL OPPORTUNITIES AND CONSTRAINTS IN WELSH PORTS  

Option 1: Truck 

Within Europe, road transport can offer a door to door service, for a huge range of products.  

In some instances a truck may also use another mode of transport, such as a RoRo ferry or a 

Channel Tunnel shuttle train, but the goods can travel by truck from door to door with no 

need to transfer the load. The fact that handling is limited reduces the risk of damage to the 

load. 

Option 2: Rail (probably also with a truck element) 

Within Europe, rail freight can occasionally give a door to door service, although this may be 

to another business user, as for example with car components travelling to a factory, rather 

than the retailer or ultimate end user.  There is a fundamental issue with ‘last mile’ 

provision.  Whereas it is possible to get a truck to most locations, many locations will be 20-

50 miles from the nearest railhead for freight services.  Typically a rail option will need to 

involve a road transport element at start and the end of the journey.  For the customer, this 

will require dealing with a rail freight operator, as well as road haulage companies.  

Railfreight operators, do not also provide road haulage as well.   

For this option a high level of traffic is needed, not just in volume, but also in frequency and 

regularity.  . 

Option 3: Sea (probably also with a truck element)   

Few customers are located at a port.  In some instances, businesses have been located close 

to a port to benefit from the transport links.  For example steel works in South Wales are 

close to both raw materials and transport links.   

However, in the majority of cases, a sea journey will also need a road journey, (or possibly a 

rail and a road journey) probably at both ends of the sea transit.  The transfer will add to the 

overall journey time.  Even for a global journey from the Far East, with the European leg of 

the journey beginning at a port, (such a Rotterdam or Felixstowe), the onward transfer is 

often by road rather than by sea. 

Option 4: Logistics and Transport Operators 

This is less a modal choice issue, more a decision based on complexity and overall price.  

Many businesses delegate to a logistics provider all the transport decisions and operational 

Tudalen 40



9 

 

management for an overall price.  Some larger logistics providers such as Maersk and Exel 

will have their own containers, ships, rail wagons and trucks; others will have partnership 

arrangements with other operators.  They regard themselves not as transport companies, 

but as ‘complete supply chain managers’.   

Conclusions on modal choice for freight 

Price is the driver of decisions in the freight business.  Mode is chosen on the basis of the 

cheapest price. 

Road is at present, generally, the cheapest option for transport within Europe.  It is also 

usually the simplest to organise.  Growth patterns for freight confirm the apparent ease of 

choosing road transport.  Road traffic has grown faster than any other mode, and is 

predicted to continue to do so. 

The domination of road transport poses a major issue for those who seek to persuade traffic 

to switch modes.  Other modes do not have a simple ‘one stop shop’ for pricing and 

scheduling information.  In many instances end customers will consider cost rather than the 

mode used. 

Reliability is the second factor.  However, road congestion does not yet seem to be having 

an impact on reliability as a truck has options to divert to another route.  This is in contrast 

to rail or shipping for example, where a delay will affect an entire shipment.    

The complexity of the decision process for ‘non road’ modal options has an impact on 

business development.  A port cannot single-handedly pursue new business without a plan 

for onward transport whether land or sea based.  A port has to work in collaboration with 

road and / or rail partners, shipping lines, and other ports in order to successfully develop 

new traffic.  

 

PORT CHOICE 

Port choice seems to be either a question of habit and inertia, and also is often based on 

imperfect information.  There is relatively little genuine competition. 

The ‘habit’ element can be seen as ports tend to build traffic from their current customers, 

and range of destinations, i.e. the people that already know them. Operators are generally 

very reluctant to change established business patterns.  In describing their ports, even the 

operators and port authorities typically refer to the current hinterland accessible by road 

and current types of traffic rather than potential growth. 

Rail or logistics operators may have an interest in using ports which connect to their current 

network of services.  Shipping operators too, turn to the ports they currently serve 

reinforcing historical and contractual ties.  . 

Tudalen 41



10 

 

Within the UK, infrastructure development can be seen to be developing around the biggest 

ports for known increases in traffic, rather than as speculative development for smaller 

ports.  Thus for example, rail infrastructure improvements to serve the port of Felixstowe, 

will serve to reinforce and further enhance its role as the UK’s biggest port.   

For the development of short sea shipping, particularly for new services, it is essential to 

have knowledge of other ports, either to recommend a port over its neighbours, or to 

develop links with potential collaborators and it is clear that knowledge is based on old and 

often imperfect information.  Milford Haven for example, is frequently described as an oil 

port, without any realisation of the RoRo services which operate there (Pembroke) nor of its 

new LNG role.     

 

MOTORWAYS OF THE SEA 

This concept is still being developed by the European Union.  The objective of’ Motorways of 

the Sea’ is to promote high quality, frequent door to door intermodal freight movements, 

with the long haul stage completed by sea.  

 

LAND SIDE INFRASRUCTURE AND QUALITY  

Road congestion 

Road congestion is increasingly becoming an important issue across Europe for road 

hauliers.  Congestion affects the speed and predictability of transfer.  It also generates 

environmental impacts as the increase in road freight is felt by other road users, and local 

communities.  Congestion and delays increase fuel consumption — and pollution. 

High quality land side links by road and rail for are essential if the hinterland of ports in 

Wales is to be extended to say the south east, midlands and North West of England. This 

includes provision for higher line speeds and for improved roads with dual carriageway links 

or at least single carriageway with dual sections. Wales’ ports have to compete on journey 

time by sea and the overall driving time to the final destination. This will affect the cost 

attractiveness of Wales as an investment opportunity compared with other EU member 

states. 

Wales has to compete with low labour cost member states which are often nearer to the 

major consumer markets. Thus the quality of our infrastructure both quayside and landside 

has to be more efficient for the mover of goods. 

Quality of service and just in time logistics  

Tudalen 42



11 

 

Much of the freight and logistics industry has changed in the last decade to reflect business 

practices with very low inventory, reliant on a ‘just in time’ delivery system to the customer.  

This keeps overall costs and working capital low, but the transport element becomes vital 

for major distribution organisations, whether for finished goods, such as supermarket 

supplies or components and materials, such as for car production.  With a just in time 

logistics chain, the reliability and quality of service becomes paramount as a failure can lead 

to empty supermarket shelves, or stop a car production line. 

 

TOURISM AND THE CRUISE MARKET  

A number of questions arise when considering the reasons why the Celtic Sea (please refrain 

from using the term Irish Sea which deflects attention from Wales) has not generated the 

level of business achieved by the Baltic Sea whose historical, cultural and geographical 

features are similar. The latter is now the third biggest cruise market after the Caribbean 

and the Mediterranean.  

Which Welsh ports have deep water sufficient for the 2500+ passenger ships? 

What deep water facilities do cruise shipping companies require to entice them to Welsh 

ports? 

The return to the local economy however can be considerable. At a spend level of £100 - 

£150 per person a large cruise liner such as the Golden Princess, (109,000 tonnes with 2600 

passengers) which has called at Holyhead, may generate £250,000 per one day visit through 

tourist spend (on excursion coaches, restaurants, souvenirs etc.) and vessel servicing.  

It has been suggested that such a ship can flood an area with visitors and may detract from 

the visitor experience, and that ships of 1300 passengers are preferable. However the 

number of ships of the latter size is limited but they are able to operate into smaller tidal 

berths such as Cardiff and Newport. 

A larger cruise liner has called at Holyhead four times in a year and some cruise companies 

see a potential expansion in that level given the right berthing conditions. Many of the 

passengers are North American looking for a taste of Welsh / Celtic ancestry history, culture 

and scenic beauty. Special entertainment was provided on board when the Golden Princess 

called at Holyhead on US Independence Day 

However the development of the cruise market for Ynys Mon and north Wales is restricted 

by inadequate infrastructure at Holyhead. Although there is sufficient deep water for large 

ships to currently anchor off Holyhead the quayside length is insufficient to enable the ship 

to berth. 

Tudalen 43



12 

 

An extension to the Anglesey Aluminium jetty using a dolphin (a long concrete slab enabling 

the ship to ‘tie up’) at an estimated cost of £3m was proposed in 2009. The jetty itself is 

considered large enough in area to accommodate excursion coaches and freight vehicles.  

This is an important part of cruise operational and financial success. It is the single most 

important criterion in determining the calling points on a cruise. The alternative is to ferry 

passengers to and from the quayside which has a cost attached to it. The most important 

aspect however is the inability to work on the ship, to offload and reload food, drinks, fresh 

water and diesel fuel. 

There is a three year lead time for companies to determine new routes and calling ports. 

Constructing such a facility at Holyhead (and at Milford Haven which has deep water but 

where a new jetty would have to be built at a cost of £20m - £30m) would not guarantee its 

development as a calling port but would be a prerequisite for consideration. There is 

therefore a risk but one with considerable potential economic and employment impact 

particularly as the Anglesey option has such a low capital investment and might be 

justifiably used to test the market    

How might such a cruise terminal be funded? 

The current technical assessment of Anglesey Aluminium jetty as a cruise quayside will in 

the industry’s view provide a perfect quayside for the larger ships to dock alongside. This 

would be seen as a public investment not one by Stena Line as the return to the port 

operator is relatively low , certainly below the 13% - 15% which a commercial port operator 

would expect from a capital investment project. 

The major benefit would be to the wider local economy with jobs in the retail, coach 

operations, catering and historical / culture business sectors. Princess Cruises see the 

opportunity to give their largely American market a taste of Wales. Caernarfon Castle (with 

its royal connections) and the historic Ffestiniog Railway are popular destinations on 

excursions – a very profitable part of the cruise business along with alcohol sales and the 

casino and on board retailing 

What attractions do the current cruise passengers at Holyhead find most attractive (e.g. 

Castell Caernarfon, Ffestiniog Railway) 

What attractions on shore would they find in north or south Wales in the hinterlands of 

the ports which could be so developed? 

Potential to replicate the Baltic Sea with Celtic Sea - Wales, NW England, Ireland (especially 

Dublin), Scotland – destinations would provide the ideal short trip multi visit conditions 

which give best profitability. Comparisons with the operations in the Baltic, Canary / 

Madeira / west Spain and the eastern Mediterranean fly - cruise show the economics of 

cruise shipping could fit into the Celtic Sea. The Princess Cruise operation already includes 

Dublin, Belfast and Edinburgh as part of its programme. 

Tudalen 44



13 

 

 

Could we replicate the success of the Baltic sea as a cruise destination in the Celtic sea 

taking destinations in , for example, western Scotland, Holyhead, Milford Haven, the west 

country(in England) Dublin and Belfast? 

The cruise operations below are particularly useful because of the similarity of their 

operation with that which might be developed in the Celtic Sea as an internal operation. 

Most cruise operators in the Baltic Sea call into five / six visited ports per seven day cruise. 

These may be in different orders and not all are the same. The choice in general is: 

Copenhagen 

Gdansk 

Tallinn  

St Petersburg 

Helsinki 

Stockholm 

 

These might operate back to back e.g. Copenhagen – Stockholm; Stockholm – Copenhagen 

alternate voyages or as a full circle. This operation over say three months would bring a 

total of twelve or more cruises.  

The ports for the Celtic Sea equivalent could be 

Key Terminal Port (with direct air links to the USA and Canada) 

Dublin  

Calling Ports 

Belfast 

Glasgow 

Barrow in Furness (for the Lake District) 

Holyhead 

Liverpool (though preferably served via Holyhead) 

Milford Haven (future) 

Standing Off Ports (calling ports for smaller vessels) 

Cardiff 

Cornwall (standing off only) 

 

How was the development of a cruise terminal at Liverpool docks funded? 

Tudalen 45



14 

 

Liverpool opened a £19m public funded cruise berth in 2005 (?) which took much of 

Holyhead traffic. Income to the port of an estimated £80,000 pa was insufficient to justify 

investment where Stena would look for a 15% rate of return.  

 

WELSH PORTS – OPERATION AND OWNERSHIP 

Newport 

• Location: mouth of the River Usk; Severn Estuary / Bristol Channel; near J28 M4 

• Cargo: general including timber, cars, non-ferrous metals, building Materials, steel, 

minerals and ores especially coal, agribulks, animal feed, sand, forest products (from 

Baltic ports) 

• Links: road and rail 

• Owners: ABP plc ( trading name of Associated British Ports Holdings PLC following 

privatisation) 

 

Cardiff  

• Location: mouth of the River Taff south east of the Cardiff Bay development; Severn 

Estuary / Bristol Channel 

• Cargo: containers, dry bulk (e.g. pet products storage and bagging), forest products 

(from Baltic ports), fresh produce (using chilled, ambient and frozen chambers), 

general cargo (coated pipes, mining supports, rail carriages, heavy duty Ro-Ro), steel. 

• Cruise market (limited with potential) 

• Links: rail and road (single carriageway to M4) 

• Owners: ABP plc 

 

Barry 

• Location: near Barry town; Severn Estuary / Bristol Channel 

• Cargo: Dry bulks (grain, cement, flour including bagging), containers, forest products 

(Latvia), general cargo, Ro-Ro, liquid bulk (chemicals), steel, re-cycled metals 

• Links: limited capacity road and rail 

• Owners: ABP plc 

 

Port Talbot 

• Location: adjacent to M4 with direct access 

• Cargo: mainly Corus imports of coal and iron ore; third party coal for power stations; 

one of the deepest berths in UK (Tidal Harbour); processed slag (Port Talbot Docks); 

sand heavy lift cargoes, Ro-Ro 

• Links: direct road  to M4 motorway; direct rail connection 

• Owners: ABP plc 

Tudalen 46



15 

 

 

Swansea 

• Location: seaward end of the Severn Estuary; east of Swansea city centre 

• Cargo: dry bulks (cement, agribulks, including bagging), coal, plywood, steel, copper, 

Ro-Ro, marina development 

• Cruise market (limited with potential) 

• Links: high quality road to M4, direct rail connection 

• Owner: ABP plc 

 

Milford Haven  

• Location: in areas on each side of the Milford Haven / Aberdaugleddau. Milford 

Haven on the north bank and Pembroke Port and the Chevron oil refinery to the 

south. 

• Cargo: oil, liquid natural gas (LNG); Ro-Ro major link to Ireland), general cargo 

(including scrap steel outbound), marina development 

• Cruise: (limited with potential) 

• Links: direct rail link but with low line speeds and network line single track in 

places. Road links have limited capacity; 28 miles from dual carriageway at St 

Clear’s (A40). 

• Owner: Milford Haven Port Authority. A port trust required by Act to operate 

efficiently, cover costs from revenue and benefit the local area 

 

Fishguard 

• Location: West Pembrokeshire coast 

• Cargo:  Ro-Ro is the primary business 

• Links: single carriageway road to St Clear’s(A40) 

• Owner: Stena Line Ports Limited 

 

Holyhead 

• Location: On the Isle of Anglesey / Ynys Mon in north west Wales. En route to 

Liverpool and Manchester Docks; opposite  Dublin across the Celtic Sea     

• Cargo: primarily Ro-Ro (Stena Line / Irish Ferries) and foot passengers; deep water 

quayside bulk facility 

• Cruise: 7/ 8 ships per annum; down from 15 p.a. three years ago  

• Links: A55 Expressway direct access; direct to English motorway network; railway 

station at Holyhead port; on Trans-European Network (Euro route 22 to Republic of 

Ireland). Potential competitor to Liverpool. 

• Owner: Stena Line Ports Limited  

 

Tudalen 47



16 

 

Mostyn 

• Location: south bank Dee Estuary, north Wales. 

• Cargo: Airbus A380 wing load out transfer facility. Wings are 48 metres long, weigh 

25 tonnes and are transported in a jig weighing 100 tonnes Air transport is therefore 

not possible. Wings are brought along the River Dee by barge (Afon Dyfrdwy) and 

transferred to the specialised ship for onward sea transfer to the Airbus factory at 

Toulouse.  Ro-Ro facilities for accompanied and unaccompanied trailers. General 

cargo 

• Links: rail - North Wales Main Line adjacent; road link to A55 Expressway / English 

motorway network. 

• Owner: Mostyn is privately owned and operated. It is also a statutory harbour 

authority 

 

Opportunities 

• Cruise shipping 

• With improved internal links into the English motorway network there are several 

opportunities for short sea shipping within the European Union e.g. Atlantic Arc 

ports (western France; Iberia) 

• Container development e.g. at Cardiff 

• Ro-Ro services to southern Europe e.g. Santander In particular unaccompanied 

trailers 

• Diversification already seen at Milford Haven where LNG has replace oil as an 

important product 

• Joint marketing of Welsh ports with ABP plc and Stena Ports and WAG taking a lead 

 

Professor Stuart Cole 

Emeritus Professor of Transport 

Wales Transport Research Centre 

University of Glamorgan Business School 

 

15 February 2012 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 48



17 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1: Map - Atlantic Arc Ports 

 

Tudalen 49



18 

 

 

  

Tudalen 50



19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 51



 

 

Memorandum submitted by Martin Evans, Visiting Fellow, University of 

Glamorgan Business School 

 

Executive Summary 

 

1.1 The provision of airports outside of south-east Wales needs to be examined. 

 

1.2 The route network at Cardiff Airport needs to be developed in particular connections 

to major hubs. 

 

1.3 A strategic study of air transport in Wales needs to be undertaken. 

 

1.4 A strategy to increase inbound tourism needs to be developed. 

 

1.5 Dialogue between airports, airlines and Government needs to be improved. 

 

1.6 Robust independent data for passenger demand from Wales needs to be prepared. 

 

Background 

 

2.1 Martin Evans is a Visiting Fellow at the University of Glamorgan Business School. 

He has undertaken a number of research and consultancy assignments for the Welsh 

Government and for the private sector. 

 

How important are Welsh Airports, both to the economy of their regions and to Wales as 

a whole? 

 

3.1 Cardiff Airport is the only airport offering scheduled services in south Wales. The 

only other airport in Wales offering scheduled services is Anglesey Airport which offers 

a service to Cardiff and a seasonal service to the Isle of Man 

 

3.2  North-east Wales is served by airports in England at Liverpool and Manchester. The 
provision of surface links to these airports from north Wales is very important. Rail 

services from north Wales to Manchester Airport are not part of the Wales and Borders 

franchise but are provided by Arriva Trains Wales on a commercial basis. 

 

3.3 The provision of the civil terminal at Anglesey Airport is important for the economic 

development of Anglesey. However, apart from the seasonal service to the Isle of Man, 

there have been no additional services commenced since the Cardiff/Anglesey service 

which is operated under a Public Service Obligation. If the Public Service Obligation 

wasn’t renewed (i.e. if there was an improvement in the journey time between Cardiff 

and Holyhead by train), then Anglesey Airport would be at risk of closure. 

 

3.4 South-west Wales is remote and peripheral when considering access to air services. It 

is remote from the nearest airport offering scheduled services, Cardiff Airport but taking 

into consideration the deficiencies in the route network at Cardiff many passengers from 

Tudalen 52



 

 

south-west Wales will access air services through an airport in England involving a 

surface journey of up to five hours. 
 

3.5 The economy of south-west Wales could undoubtedly perform better if there was 

better access to air services. It would become a more attractive business location, those 

businesses already located there could better serve customers in other parts of the UK and 

Europe. The tourism industry would benefit from the higher spending tourists that are 

brought by air travel. 

 

3.6 Cardiff Airport serves a catchment area that includes Cardiff and the Vale of 

Glamorgan, areas where the population has a high propensity to travel but also includes 

parts of south Wales outside of these areas where the propensity to travel is much lower.  

 

3.7 Historically, there has been a high demand for air services for outbound passengers 

during the Summer but lower demand for services during the Winter. 

 

3.8 The low number of destinations served has led to large numbers of passengers 
choosing to access air services from airports in England. 

 

3.9 Passengers from Wales travelling from airports in England takes employment out of 

Wales. 

 

3.10 The lack of route development at Cardiff Airport makes Wales seem remote and 

peripheral. 

 

3.11 The lack of connectivity through major international hubs makes south Wales an 

unattractive location for international businesses. Amsterdam is well served but Paris is 

only served once a day and the important international hub of Frankfurt is not served at 

all. 

  

What factors limit realisation of the potential offered by Welsh airports; what 

opportunities are available to develop this potential; and how can these be realised? 
 

 

4.1 To develop one of the airfields in south-west Wales to offer scheduled services would 

require both capital investment and revenue support that is not available from either 

private or council owners. This support could only be provided by the Welsh 

Government. 

  

4.2 The route network at Cardiff could be improved if the potential of south Wales as a 

destination for inbound tourists was better exploited. Tourism is already an important 

industry for Wales, the tourism infrastructure already exists and yet tourists are not 

encouraged to arrive here by air. 

 

4.3 Welsh Government marketing needs to be better focussed to both attract new airlines 

and support inbound tourism for those routes that already exist. 

Tudalen 53



 

 

 

4.4 The mechanism for dialogue between airports, airlines and Government needs to be 
improved. The Government needs to have a consistent approach to the development of 

airports and what it can offer to airlines.  

 

4.5 The Government needs to have independently produced passenger forecasts to 

underpin the marketing of new route opportunities to airlines. 

 

How effectively do Welsh Government policies support the development of Welsh 

airports? 

 

5.1 The Welsh Government has not undertaken any policy work in this area since the 

Intra-Wales Air Services study which only examined internal air services, not external 

connectivity. 

 

5.2 There has been no strategic study into where air services are needed in Wales, what 

air services are needed and what is the best way to provide them? 
 

5.3 Because of the lack of developed policy in this area, the Welsh Government develops 

policy on an ad-hoc basis. This can lead to inconsistent messages coming from Ministers 

that leads to uncertainty for airports and airlines. 

 

5.4 Marketing support has been provided to airlines to develop new routes but there 

needs to be a better understanding of which routes are important for Wales so that 

marketing can be better targeted. 

 

24/02/12 

 

Martin Evans 

Visiting Fellow 

University of Glamorgan Business School 

Tudalen 54



Eitem 5

Tudalen 55

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



 

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes 

 

Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - Senedd 
 

 

  
Dyddiad:  Dydd Iau, 2 Chwefror 2012 

 

  
Amser:  13:30 - 15:00 

 

  

Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar Senedd TV yn: 
http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=cy_400003_02_02_2012&t=0&l=cy 

 
 

Cofnodion Cryno: 
 

   
Aelodau’r Cynulliad:  Byron Davies 

Keith Davies 
Julie James 
Alun Ffred Jones (Cadeirydd) 
Eluned Parrott 
David Rees 
Ken Skates 
Joyce Watson 
Leanne Wood 

 

  

   
Tystion:  Lis Burnett, Head of the University of Glamorgan’s 

Social Entrepreneurship Hub 
 

  

   
Staff y Pwyllgor:  Siân Phipps (Clerc) 

Sarah Bartlett (Dirprwy Glerc) 

   

 

1. Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon  

1.1 Enwebwyd Alun Ffred Jones yn Gadeirydd dros dro. 

 

1.2 Croesawodd y Cadeirydd bawb i gyfarfod y Pwyllgor. Cafwyd ymddiheuriadau gan 
Nick Ramsay. Nid oedd dirprwyon. 

 
 

2. Sesiwn ddilynol ar rôl mentrau cymdeithasol yn economi Cymru 
(13.30 - 14.30)  

Eitem 6

Tudalen 60



2.1 Croesawodd y Cadeirydd Lis Burnett, a fu’n gynghorydd arbenigol i’r cyn-Bwyllgor 
Menter a Dysgu ac sy’n Bennaeth ar Ganolfan Entrepreneuriaeth Gymdeithasol Prifysgol 
Morgannwg. Cafodd yr Aelodau y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am yr adroddiad, a buont yn 
gofyn cwestiynau. 
 
2.2 Cytunodd y Pwyllgor i wneud gwaith pellach ar fentrau cymdeithasol.  
  
 

3. Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer y busnes a ganlyn: (14.30)  
3.1 Cynigodd y Cadeirydd gynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod. 
 
3.2 Cytunodd y Pwyllgor ar y cynnig, a symudodd i sesiwn breifat.  
 

4. Cynigion deddfwriaethol drafft ynghylch cronfeydd strwythurol yr 
UE ar gyfer 2014-2020 - ystyried adroddiad drafft y pwyllgor (14.30 
- 15.00)  
4.1 Bu’r Pwyllgor yn trafod yr adroddiad. Bydd fersiwn diwygiedig yn cael ei 
ddosbarthu a’i gytuno y tu allan i’r Pwyllgor. 
 

Trawsgrifiad  
Gweld trawsgrifiad o’r cyfarfod.  

Tudalen 61



 

 

Procurement Task and Finish Group 

 

Meeting Venue: Committee Room 2 - Senedd 
 

 

  
Meeting date:  Thursday, 19 January 2012 

 

  
Meeting time:  11:30 - 14:30 

 

  

 

 
 

Concise Minutes: 

 

   
Assembly Members:  Julie James (Chair) 

Byron Davies 
Eluned Parrott 
David Rees 
Leanne Wood 

 

  

   
Witnesses:  Deryck Evans, Wales Audit Office 

David Rees, Wales Audit Office 
Jeremy Morgan, Wales Audit Office 
Iolo Llewellyn, Wales Audit Office 
Jane Hutt, Minister for Finance and Leader of the House 
Alison Standfast, Deputy Director of Procurement, Value 
Wales 
Michael Hearty, Director General for Strategic Planning, 
Finance & Performance 
Jeff Andrews, Specialist Policy Adviser, Welsh 
Government 
 

  

   
Committee Staff:  Lara Date (Clerk) 

Meriel Singleton (Deputy Clerk) 
Robin Wilkinson (Researcher) 
Gwyn Griffiths (Legal Adviser) 

 

  

 

1. Introductions, apologies and substitutions  
1.1 The Chair welcomed everybody to the meeting. There were no apologies. 

 
1.2 It was agreed the following Members would take the lead in the following 

themes: 
  

Tudalen 62



 

 

Byron Davies – contracting authorities’ experience 
Julie James – support and guidance offered 
Eluned Parrott – SME and third sector organisation access 
David Rees – simplification of procedures 
Leanne Wood – environmental and social policy objectives 
 
 

2. Inquiry into influencing the modernisation of European 
procurement policy: Technical Briefing  
 
2.1 The Chair welcomed Deryck Evans, David Rees, Jeremy Morgan, and Iolo Llewellyn 
from the Wales Audit Office.  
 
2.2 Officials from the Wales Audit Office provided the Committee with on overview 
presentation about EU procurement. This included an overview of the current 
framework; non-compliance issues and value for money issues. 
 
2.3 The Members and the witnesses discussed a number of issues around the 
reprioritisation of part B services in the Draft Procurement directives.  It was agreed 
this was an area which the Committee may wish to raise in its correspondence to the 
European Commission. 
 
2.4 There was a discussion about the challenges of being innovative against being risk 
adverse.  It was thought that the new procedures should help people to take managed 
risks as long as there was adequate risk management in place. 
 
2.5 Officials from the Wales Audit Office emphasised the need for people in Wales to 
be up-skilled in the procurement process to make sure they got the tender information 
correct at the outset.  It was suggested that this would help with reducing delays in the 
system.  
 
2.6 There was a discussion about the national oversight body which had been included 
in the EC proposals. It was suggested further consideration may be needed about how 
this may work at a devolved level. 
 
2.7 The Wales Audit Office agreed to provide any further information that it considered 
useful to the group’s inquiry following the briefing session with Members. 
 
 

3. Inquiry into influencing the modernisation of European 
procurement policy: Evidence Session 
  
3.1 The Chair welcomed the Minister and her officials to the meeting. 
 
3.2 The Minister agreed to undertake the following actions: 
  

− A note on the extent to which the UK Government Explanatory Memorandum on 
the Draft Public Procurement Directive (reference COMM 2011/896 final) 
reflected the Welsh Government’s views on the proposals and any concerns 
about the proposals and/or the Member State position. Other points which it was 
agreed the Minister would include in the note were: 

 

Tudalen 63



 

 

− Response to the proposal for a ‘national oversight’ authority and its 
possible implications and any other subsidiarity issues raised by the 
EM;  
 

− Legal advice on whether the provisions on social and environmental 
policy objectives and supporting the Welsh Government’s community 
benefits policy were sufficiently strong;  

 
− The implications of provisions to abolish Part B services and introduce a 

new regime for social services;  
 

− The implications of the Remedies Directive for Wales and any 
comparative information on the experience of Northern Ireland  

 
− To consider seeking further legal opinion on the scope of the draft proposals to 

fit better with the implementation of Structural Funds/Cohesion Policy. 
 

− To share the report of the Lessons Learnt review exercise of framework contracts 
in North Wales  

 
3.3  The Committee agreed to ask the Enterprise Minister to provide a written response 
on work being undertaken to support Welsh firms to compete outside Wales (within the 
UK and in Europe) in the field of public procurement. 
 
 

Tudalen 64


	Agenda
	2 Sesiwn i graffu ar waith y Gweinidog - y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau
	3 Ymchwiliad i gysylltedd rhyngwladol drwy borthladdoedd a meysydd awyr Cymru - Sesiwn dystiolaeth
	EBC(4)-07-12 Papur 3 - Yr Athro Martin Evans, Ysgol Fusnes Prifysgol Morgannwg (Saesneg yn Unig)

	5 Trafod y Flaenraglen Waith - Ystyried ymchwiliad ar gyfer y dyfodol
	6 Papurau i'w nodi
	EBC(4)-07-12 Papur 4 Œ Nodyn am gyfarfod grwp gorchwyl a gorffen yr UE ar Gaffael ar 19 Ionawr


